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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders

Your Directors take great pleasure in presenting the Fifteenth Annual Report along
with the audited financial statements for 2024-25 (or FY2025).

Company Overview and Operations

Your Company offers various products and services which cater to the needs of
consumers incurring uninsured hospitalization and outpatient expenditure. The
Company is working with various partners like pharmaceutical companies, hospitals &
clinics and corporates to identify and cater to their needs. We are continuously building
our healthcare expertise by servicing clients in various sectors and leveraging the
knowledge to increase the scope of our offerings.

Company has leveraged its proprietary health insurance claims administration
knowledge and platform to service an insurer outside India enabling them to
administer health insurance policies. The Company expects to build similar
partnerships in coming years.

Company believes that the significant investments undertaken over the last few years
in technology and people have created a strong launching platform to scale the
organization to newer heights.

Financial Summary

During the year under review, the Company has transitioned from IGAAP Financial
Reporting Standards to Indian Accounting Standard year (“Ind AS") in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015,

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 has been
disclosed as per the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and Ind AS.
The impact of the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS on the financial position and
performance of the Company has been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

The highlights of the standalone financial results of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2025 are given below:;

B (Rs. in lakh)

Particulars For the year For the year

ended on ended on

31 March 2025 31 March

2024

Total income from operations 4,708.88 8.632.51
Expenditure excluding depreciation 4,310.03 3,052.36
Depreciation | 327.30 251.70
Profit/(Loss) before tax 71.55 5,328.45
Provision for Tax- Current 147.69 637.87
Deferred (83.65) (61.63)
Profit/(Loss) after tax 7.51 4,752.21
Other comprehensive income for the year (15.38) 12.27
(net of tax)
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Particulars For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31 March 2025 31 March
2024
Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for (7.86) 4,764.48
the year

The highlights of the Consolidated financial results of the Company for the year ended

31 March 2025 are given below:

(Rs. in lakh)

Particulars For the year For the year

ended on ended on

31 March 2025 31 March

2024

Total income from operations 23,677.41 23,973.37
Expenditure excluding depreciation 25,888.93 24,893.79
Depreciation 1.450.25 1.356.20
Profit/(Loss) before tax . L (3,661.77) (2,276.61)
Provision for Tax- Current 295.66 924.13
Deferred (1,843.58) (214.59) |
Profit/(Loss) after tax (2,113.86) (2,986.15)
Other comprehensive income for the year (62.94) 36.41
(net of tax)
Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for (2,166.80) (2949.74)
the year

Dividend and transfer to reserves

Considering the operating losses, no dividend is being recommended, nor any amount
is proposed for transfer to reserves.

Report on performance and financial position of subsidiaries, associates and
joint venture companies

Company has three wholly owned subsidiaries viz., Vidal Health Insurance TPA
Private Limited, VH Medcare Private Limited and VH International LLC.

The Company has an associate, Intent Health Technologies Private Limited
("Intenthealth”), in which it had control or participated in business decisions pursuant to
an agreement.

During the year under review, the Company disinvested its entire equity shareholding
in Intenthealth, comprising 149,100 equity shares of face value Rs.10 each, and
transferred the stake to the promoters of Intenthealth with the objective of reducing
capital expenditure and optimizing resources to maximize returns. Accordingly, it
ceases to be an associate company.

The Company does not have any other associate or joint venture Company. The
Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bajaj Finserv Health Limited.

Information on the performance and financial position of subsidiaries of the Company
are provided in Form AOC-1 is annexed to this Report
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Material Changes and Commitment, If Any, Affecting the Financial Position of
the Company After Balance Sheet Date

There were no other material changes or commitments affecting the financial position
of the Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the balance sheet relates and the date of this report.

Risk Management

Company follows a Risk Management Policy covering key risks, including operational
risks, as well as processes for monitoring and mitigating such risks. The Company has
put in place an adequate and effective risk reporting system. In the opinion of the
Board, there are no residual risks which would threaten the existence of the Company.

Internal Financial Controls with Reference to the Financial Statements

Company continuously invests in strengthening its internal control processes. The
Company has put in place an adequate system of internal control commensurate with
its size and nature of business. These systems provide a reasonable assurance in
respect of providing financial and operational information, complying with applicable
statutes, safeguarding of assets of the Company and ensuring compliance with
corporate policies. Financial policies, standards and delegations of authority have
been disseminated to senior management to cascade within their departments.
Procedures to ensure conformance with the policies, standards and delegations of
authority have been put in place covering all activities.

Board of Directors

The composition of Board as on 31 March 2025 was as follows:

Sr. No | Name of the Director Category

1 Devang Mody Chairman, Non-Executive Director
2 Girish Rao Managing Director

3 Anish Amin Non-Executive Director

4 | Anant Marathe Non-Executive Director

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Board comprises of persons with diverse experience and skills, such that it best
serves the governance and strategic needs of the Company and its stakeholders. The
present composition broadly meets this objective.

During the year under review, following changes have been taken place in the
directorate and key managerial personnel:

1. Change in Directorate:

a) Nandita Durai Swamy (DIN: 03181823) resigned as Non- Executive Director of
the Company w.e.f. 26 April 2024 (close of business hours).

b) Board at its meeting held on 26 April 2024, appointed Devang Mody (DIN:

07794726), Anish Amin (DIN: 00070679) and Anant Marathe (DIN: 10599075)
as Additional, Non- Executive Directors, Non- Independent Directors of the
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Company w.e.f. 26 April 2024. Their appointment was subsequently regularized
at the annual general meeting held on 27 August 2024.

c) Girish Rao (DIN: 00073937) relinquished the position of Managing Director w.e.f.
30 April 2025 (close of business hours) and the Board at its meeting held on 21
April 2025, appointed him as Vice Chairman and Non- Executive Director, Non-
Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 01 May 2025.

d) The Board at its meeting held on 21 April 2025, appointed Neetha Uthaiah (DIN:
09567613) as an Additional, Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. 01 May
2025. Resolution for regularisation of Neetha forms part of the notice of annual
general meeting.

. Directors liable to be retire by rotation:

Devang Mody (DIN: 07794726), retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and has
offered himself for re-appointment. The information as required to be disclosed in
case of re-appointment of the director is provided in the notice of the ensuing AGM.

. Key Managerial Personnel:

Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the appointment of Key
Managerial Personnel, is not applicable to the Company. However, in the interest of
the good corporate governance, the Board at its meeting held on 18 October has
voluntarily appointed the following Key Managerial Personnel

a) Chhavi Saraf as Chief financial Officer (CFO) of the Company w.e.f. 01
November 2024.

b) Isha Natani as Company Secretary (CS) of the Company w.e.f. 01 November
2024

Number of Board Meetings

During the Financial Year 2024-2025, the Board of Directors of the Company duly met
11 (Eleven) times. The intervening gap between the two meetings was within the
period as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The details of all the meetings
are summarized below:

Sr. Serial Number of Board | Date of Meeting
No. Meeting

1. 01/2024-25 12 April 2024

2. 02/2024-25 18 April 2024

3. 03/2024-25 18 April 2024

4. 04/2024-25 19 April 2024

5. 05/2024-25 23 April 2024

6. 06/2024-25 24 April 2024 |
7. 07/2024-25 25 April 2024

8. 08/2024-25 26 April 2024

9. 09/2024-25 19 July 2024

10. 10/2024-25 18 October 2024
11. 11/2024-25 24 January 2025

Number of Board Meeting Attended by each Director:
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| Sr. [Name of Director Number of Meeting
No. Held Attended
1. Girish Rao 11 11

2. Devang Mody 3 3
3. Anish Amin 3 2
4 Anant Marathe 3 3

Annual Return

A copy of the Annual Return as provided under section 92(3) read with section
134(3)(a) of the Act in the prescribed Form MGT-7 is available on the Company's
website and can be accessed at https://www.vidalhealth.com/compliance

Directors’ Responsibility Statements

In accordance with the provisions of section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Directors state that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the loss of the Company for FY2025;

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(v) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and were operating
effectively.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:

During the year the Company has extended loan to Vidal Health Insurance TPA
Private Limited and VH Medcare Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company. Details of loans, guarantees or investments are provided in the notes to
financial statements as required under the provisions of section 186 of the Act.

Public Deposits:
During the year, the Company has neither accepted nor renewed any ‘Public Deposit’
within the meaning of section 73 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of

Deposit) Rules, 2014. The Company has not received advance from any of its
members, Directors or relatives of Directors.

Page 6 of 17



VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
15% Annual Report 2024-25

Share Capital
During FY2025, there was no change in the authorised share capital of the Company.

As on 31 March 2025, the authorised share capital of the Company was Rs.
120,000,000 divided into 81,15,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each and 30,000
compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs.1,295 each.

However, during FY2025, the paid-up equity share capital has increased from Rs
17,754,720, comprising 17,75,472 fully paid equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 to
Rs. 19,967,980 comprising of 1,996,798 fully paid equity shares of face value of Rs.
10 due to exercise of employee stock options granted under the Vidal Health
Employees stock option scheme 2015, the Company has allotted 2,21,326 equity
shares, with such shares ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing equity
shares of the Company.

Employee Stock Option Scheme

The employees of the Company were previously covered under ESOP scheme 2015
of the Company. All options granted under the said ESOP scheme have been duly
exercised and allotted. The said ESOP scheme has now been concluded.

Post acquisition by Bajaj Finserv Health Limited, the employees of the Company are
covered under the Employee Stock Option Scheme of Bajaj Finserv Limited, the
holding company of Bajaj Finserv Health Limited. The shareholders of Bajaj Finserv
Limited, at their 11th Annual General Meeting held on 19 July 2018, had approved the
aforesaid Bajaj Finserv Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme (BFS-ESOS).

Related Party Transactions

All contracts/arrangement/transactions entered by the Company with related parties
during the period under review were in compliance with the applicable provisions of
the Act including on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the
Company under the Act. None of the transactions required members’ prior approval
under the Act.

Details of transactions with related parties during FY2025 are provided in the notes to
the financial statements. There were no transactions requiring disclosure under
section 134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence, the prescribed Form AOC-2 does not form a part
of this Report.

Significant/Material Orders Passed by the Regulators /Courts/Tribunal
During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by any
Regulators or Courts or tribunals, which may impact the going concern status of the

Company and its operations in future.

Particulars Regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The information pertaining to the conservation of energy and technology absorption in

terms of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is stated as below:
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Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

Though the operations of the Company are not energy-intensive in nature, it
implements various energy conservation measures across all its functions.

Considering the nature of operations, no particulars regarding technology
absorption are required to be given in this Report.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The total foreign exchange earnings in FY2025 in terms of actual inflows was Rs
3,946.14 lakh (FY2024: Rs 2,633.81 lakh).

The total foreign exchange outgo in FY2025 in terms of actual outflows amounted
to Rs 267.48 lakh as against Rs. 209.93 lakh during the previous year.

Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The provisions of section 177 and section 178 of the Act relating to constitution of an
Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee, are not applicable to
the Company, being a wholly owned subsidiary of Bajaj Finserv Limited.

Auditors

Statutory Auditor

PKF Sridhar & Santhanam, LLP, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore (Firm
Registration No. 003990S/S200018) continue to be the Statutory Auditor of the
Company. They hold office for a period of 5 years upto the 16th Annual General
Meeting scheduled in the year 2026.

The Statutory Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remarks for the FY2025.

Frauds reported by auditors under Section 143(12), other than those which
are reportable to the Central Government.

During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by auditors to the
Board under Section 143(12) of the Act.

Cost Auditor

The provisions of section 148 of the Act read with rule 3 of the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company. Therefore,
the Company has not appointed a Cost Auditor.

Secretarial Auditor

The provisions of section 204 of the Act read with rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not

applicable to the Company. Therefore, the Company has not appointed a
secretarial auditor.
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v. Internal Auditor:

Internal audit is an integral part of corporate governance. The objective of internal
audit is to identify, assess and mitigate risks as well as to evaluate and contribute
to the systems of internal controls and governance processes followed by the
Company. Key elements of internal audit are assurance on controls, governance
and compliance, business risk assessment and its mitigation and process
optimization,

The Board periodically reviews the internal audit reports and the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls. Significant audit observations, corrective and
preventive actions thereon are presented to the Board.

M/s RVK & Co, Chartered Accountants, Chennai (Firm Registration No. 015063S)
was appointed in the Board meeting held on 24 January 2025 as the Internal
Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 to
monitor and evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the
Company.

Vigil Mechanism

Though the provisions of section 177(9) of the Act read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company,
the Company has established a Mechanism for employees to report genuine
concerns under its Whistleblower Policy. No case was reported during the year under
review. The Company did not receive any whistleblower complaint(s) during the year
under review.

Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under the Secretarial
Standards on meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-
2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India read with the MCA
circulars.

Corporate social responsibility

The provisions of the Corporate Social Responsibility as contained under the
Companies Act, 2013 are applicable to the Company.

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company
and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are
annexed to this Report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. This Policy can be accessed on the Company's
website at https://www.vidalhealth.com/compliance

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are applicable to the Company.

During the year under review, the Committee was reconstituted with following

members: Mr. Girish Rao, Managing Director, and Mr. Devang Mody, Director, as its
members.
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Subsequently, pursuant to the provisions of section 135(9) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Board of Directors, disbanded the CSR Committee, as the Company's
CSR expenditure for the year did not exceed %50 lakh. Accordingly, the functions of
the CSR Committee are now being discharged by the Board of Directors.

During the FY2025, the CSR Committee met 2 (two) times to oversee the
implementation of the Company's CSR initiatives in alignment with the CSR
objectives and policy. The details of the meetings held are as follows:

Sr. Serial Number of Date of Name of Committee —‘
No. Board Meeting Meeting members attended
1. 01/2024-25 12 April Girish Rao
2024 Nandita Durai Swamy
2. 02/2024-25 17 October Girish Rao
2024 Devang Mody

In accordance with section 134(3)(0) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors states that during the year, the Company inadvertently made an error in the
calculation of net profits under section 198, resulting in an unspent CSR amount of
Rs. 4 lakh for FY2025. As the amount does not relate to any ongoing project, the
Board, approved its utilisation towards activities specified under Schedule VII.

The Company shall ensure compliance with the provisions of Section 135(5) and
135(6) regarding disclosure and timely transfer of the unspent amount.

Pursuant to Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Palicy)
Rules, 2014, the Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed to this Report.

Further, the Chief Financial Officer has certified that the funds disbursed have been
utilised for the purpose and in the manner approved by the Board for FY2025.

Disclosure Relating to Managerial Remuneration:

In accordance with provision of Section 197(9) and 197(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, shareholders at their meeting held on 19 April 2025 waived the recovery of
remuneration of Rs. 17,17,39,600/-(Rupees Seventeen crore seventeen lakh thirty
nine thousand six hundred only) paid to Girish Rao, Managing Director of the
Company for the FY2025, which was in excess of the limits prescribed under Section
197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, due to inadequacy of profits.

Other Statutory Disclosures:
» There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

¢ The financial statements of the Company are placed on the Company’s website
in the Annual Report section at https://www.vidalhealth.com/compliance

» The Company has not issued Equity shares with differential rights as to dividend,
voting or otherwise and the Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares.

» There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year against the Company.
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During FY2025, there was no instance of one-time settlement with Banks or
Financial Institutions. Therefore, as per rule 8(5)(xii) of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, reasons of difference in the valuation at the time of one-time
settlement and valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial
Institutions are not reported.

The Company has not bought back any of its securities.

The voting rights are exercised directly by the employees in respect of shares
allotted under the Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company. Thus, the
disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital
and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

The Company being an unlisted company, details as required to be reported
under section 197(12) of the Act, is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not altered or changed its Memorandum and Articles of
Association.

The provisions of section 149(4) read with Rule 4 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 of the Act for having an
Independent Director on the Board of Directors is not applicable to the Company.
Consequently, the requirement under section 134(3)(d) of the Act with respect to
furnishing a statement on declaration given by Independent Director(s) do not
apply to the Company.

Disclosure as required under Section 197(14) of the Act for Managing Director,
for any remuneration or commission from any holding company or subsidiary
company is applicable to the Company. Details of the remuneration paid to the
Managing Director during FY2025 are provided in the notes to the financial
statements.

The provisions of section 178 of the Act regarding annual performance
evaluation are not applicable to the Company.

Pursuant to the legislation ‘The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has a policy on
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace and has constituted an Internal
Complaints Committee. No case was reported during the year under review.

Health, safety and environmental protection

Company has complied with all the applicable environmental laws and labour laws.
The Company has been complying with the relevant laws and has been taking all
necessary measures to protect the environment and ensure employee protection and
safety.
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The Board places its gratitude and appreciation for the support and co-operation
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For and on behalf of the Board
Of Vidal Healthcare Services Private Limited

ol

Devang Mody

Chairman

DIN: 07794726

Address: Flat No C 1502, Verde Kalyani
Nagar, Near Gurunanak Dairy, Kalyani
Nagar,

Pune 411006

Place: Pune
Date: 21 April 2025
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Annual Report on CSR activities for the financial year ended 31 March 2025

1.

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

Vidal Healthcare Services Private Limited CSR policy is aimed at demonstrating
care for the community through its focus on education & skill development, health &
wellness and environmental sustainability.

. Composition of CSR Committee:

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 24 January 2025, resolved to disband
the CSR Committee, as the Company's CSR expenditure for the year did not
exceed X50 lakh. Accordingly, the functions of the CSR Committee are being
discharged by the Board of Directors.

. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR

projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.
www.vidalhealth.com/compliance/

. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance

of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report). N.A

. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of

the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5). Rs.24,35,66,588

. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

Rs.48,71,332

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years. Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any. Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c). Rs. 48,71,332

. {a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Iﬂ:zlunt Total AmountAmount transferred to any fund
Shant fmtransferred to Unspentspecified under Schedule VII as per
thpe FinanciaICSR Account as perjsecond proviso to section 135(5).
Year. (in RS_)section 135(6).

Amount. Date ofName of the/Amount.Date of]

transfer. |Fund | transfer.

Rs. Nil Nil Prime  Minister’s|Rs. 11.06.2025
45,00,000 national relief fund 400,000

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: N.A
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the
financial year:

1)/(2) (3) (4) |(5) (6) (7)  |(8)
Sl.Name of thetem fromlLo |Location oflAmount [Mode |Mode of
No|Project the list ofical the project.lspent forjof implementation .
activities fare the imple [Through
in a project (inmentatfimplementing
chedule |(Ye Rs.). ion gency.
o to thes! o) StatDistric Rﬂ;‘;‘;& Name. [CSR
e. |t registratio
! 0).
n number.
1. [Mathioli Promoting |No [Telangana, [30,00,000 [No Yogasara (CSR00010
idhya S 287
Bhavan Education Secunderab Education
ad al
Academy
2. |Mathruseva [Eradicating [No [Chennai, [15,00,000 [No Nandalala|CSR00016
hunger, 'Tamil Nadu Seva 534
poverty and Samithi
malnutrition Trust
Total 45,00,000

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. N.A

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8¢) Rs. 45,00,000

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any : NIL

SI. No.

Particular

IAmount (in Rs.)

(i)

Two percent of average net profit of the
company as per section 135(5)

(ii)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

(i)

Excess amount spent for the financial year

[(i)-(i)]

o

(iv)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects orl0
programmes or activities of the previous
financial years, if any

v)

Amount available for set off in succeeding|0
financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: N.A

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s): N.A

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year. N.A
(asset-wise details).

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
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(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such
capital asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete
address and location of the capital asset).

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5). N.A

For and on Behalf of the Board
of Vidal Healthcare Services Private Limited

l::g-......&_

Devang Pravin Mody

Chiarman

DIN: 07794726

Address: Flat No C 1502, Verde

Near Gurunanak Dairy, Kalyani Nagar,
Pune 411006

Place: Pune
Date: 21 April 2025
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-Section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate Companies/joint-ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl Particulars Details
No.
1 Name of the subsidiary Vidal Health Insurance TPA
Private Limited
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary April, 2024-March, 2025
concerned, if different from the holding
| Company's reporting period
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on INR (in Lakh)
the last date of the relevant Financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries
4 Share capital 1159.09
5 Other Equity 1986.77 i
6 Total assets 20009.00
7 Total Liabilities 16863.14 )
8 Investments Nil
9 Turnover 18983.01
10 Profit/(Loss) before taxation (3527.17)
11 Provision for taxation (1439.79)
12 Profit/(Loss) after taxation (2087.38) ]
13 Proposed Dividend Nil
14 % of shareholding 100%
Sl. Particulars Details
No.
1 Name of the subsidiary VH Medcare Private Limited
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary April, 2024-March, 2025
concerned, if different from the holding
[ Company's reporting period
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on INR(in Lakh)
the last date of the relevant financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries
4 Share capital 350
5 Other equity (1838.81)
6 Total assets 964.43
7 Total Liabilities 2428.93
8 | Investments -
9 Turnover 286.53
10 Profit/(Loss) before taxation (924.07)
11 Provision for taxation (184.59)
12 Profit/(Loss) after taxation (739.48)
13 Proposed Dividend Nil
14 % of shareholding 100%
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VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
15" Annual Report 2024-25

sl. | Particulars Details
No.
1 Name of the subsidiary VH International LLC
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary April, 2024-March, 2025
concerned, if different from the holding
Company’s reporting period
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as QAR, ex. Rate
on the last date of the relevant financial (closing)Rs.23.4600
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries QAR ex. Rate (Avg) Rs.
23.4611
4 Share capital 11.73
5 | Other equity - (97.99)
6 Total assets 11.97
7 Total Liabilities 98.23
8 Investments -
9 Turnover -
10 Profit/(Loss) before taxation (97.99)
11 Provision for taxation -
12 Profit/(Loss) after taxation (97.99)
13 Proposed Dividend Nil
14 % of shareholding 100%

For and on Behalf of the Board
of Vidal Healthcare Services Private Limited

DOueSy

Devang Pravin Mody

Chiarman

DIN: 07794726

Address: Flat No C 1502, Verde

Near Gurunanak Dairy, Kalyani Nagar,
Pune 411006

Place: Pune
Date: 21 April 2025
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PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP

Chanered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Members of Vidal Healthcare Services Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Vidal Healthcare Services
Private Limited ("the Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2025,
the standalone statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), standalong
statement of changes in equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “standalone financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{the Act) in the manner so required and give a lrue and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. (Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit and ather
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act Our responsibilities under those S4s are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accardance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Charlered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 1o our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics
\We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our ocpimon

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information The other infarmation comprises the information included in the Direclors repan but does
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our respansibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materal
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard,

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for Standalona
Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also Includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accord “yith, the

PHF SRIDHAR & SANTHANMAM LLP & T8 & TH Gam Plags s Gt Fioos @ 66 infaniry Aoed « Bangaions & 560 001 & Indis
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provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;, making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accouniing unless management either
intends 1o liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic allernative but to do so.

Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror, and o issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also!

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
abtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nsk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from
error. as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
contrals with reference to the standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related discliosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropristeness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exisls we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continug as a going concern, and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. —




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audtt findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with govemnance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the *Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repor that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b}) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company S0
far as it appears from our examination of those books

{¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income).
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of cash fiows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the (Ind AS) specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

{e) On the basis of the written representations recelved from the directors as on 31 March 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on 31 March
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(i 'With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure B

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as of 31 March 2025 on
its financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial

staterment.

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

i There were na amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025, and

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belef, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources of kind of funds) by the company o or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries // 5 -\\




(k) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in Note 47, no funds (which are material either individually or in
the aggregate) have been received by the company from any persan(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entiies ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries

{c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material

misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared any dividend during the current year, and hence the
compliance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 while paying dividend s not
applicable to the Company

vi Relying on representations/explanations from the company and software vendor and based
on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used, an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account, which has a feature of recording awdit trail
{edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for ail relevant transactions
recorded. The accounting software is such that it has no database but only cbjects and
collections. hence, no changes is possible at that level. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and the
audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 197(16}) of the
Act In our apinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 187 of the Act

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Ng.08 S/5200018
& SAN y

Seethalakshmi
Partner
Membership No. " | R
LUDIN: 2520854 5BMNSIXZTTO

Place of Signature: Bangalare
Date: 21 April 2025



Annexure A

Referred to in paragraph 1 on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report
of even date to the members of Vidal Healthcare Services Private Limited ("the Company”} on
the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2025.

(i) {a)
{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{B) The Company has maintaingd proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(B} The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant
and Equipment by which all Property, Flant and Equipment are verified in a phased
manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were
physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification,

{c) The Company does not have any immovable properly, hence sub-clause (c) is not
applicable

{d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible
assets during the year and hence this clause is not applicable to the Company

e} Mo proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i) The company does not have inventory and has not been sanctioned working capital imits in
excess of five crore rupees and hence this clause is not applicable

(i} Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given 1o us, the
Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantée or security, but x has granted
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year as fallows:

(a)
(A) Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

Particulars — [Loans(®) ]
Aggregate amount granted / provided duning the 68.85 Cr

year
- Subsidiaries

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date | 75.33 Cr
- Subsidianes

(o) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given 1o
us, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of lsans and guarantees
provided are not prejudicial o the Company's interest. —




(€

(d)

(e}

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

{vil)
(@)

(D)

Based on our audit procedures and according fo the information and explanation given 1o
us, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of lcans, the loan granted to a
subsidiary is repayable on demand. The company has not called for the payment of
principal including interest during the year, hence commenting on regularity of the receipt
of the principal and interest is not applicable.

There are no amounts overdue for more than ninety days as at the balance sheet date

Based on our audit procedures and according ta the information and explanation given to
us, no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted have fallen due during the year and
hence the question of the loan being renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle
the overdue of existing loan given to the same parties does not arise. Accordimgly,
paragraph 3(jii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given 1o
us, the Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on

demand as follows:

| Particulars _ Related parties
Aggregate amount of loans/advances in
nature of loan

- Repayable on demand Rs 75331Cr

Percentage of loans/advances in nature of loan to the fofal loans | 100%

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us,
the Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given o us,
the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of the Act and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable o the

Company

The Company is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central Government
under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Campany.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-lax, service lax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues as applicable with the
appropriate authorities,

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Service Tax, provident fund, employees” stale insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dugs
wera in arrears, as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six maonths from the dale
they became payable

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as
at 31 March 2025, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute, except as stated below e




{wili]

(bx)

" Period to |

| Amount
Name ofthe | Nature of d:;“::d“:d paidunder | which | @ oo ity
Statute the Dues (In Lakhs) pm'l:auuhhl.li'lln ml P“'F uﬂuinﬂ
i . Joint
Goods and Commissioner
Services Tax ?ﬁ‘."‘“ - 414 0.62 FY2017- | of Commercial
Act, 2017 ice lax Taxes
- . __(Appeals) |
Goods and
Goods and FY 2018- | GST Appellate
Services Tax T.27 0.36 .
| Act, 2017 Serw:z_r Tax 18 Autharity '
| Goods and Goods and
: FY 2019- | GST Appeliate
Services Tax | Service Tax 746 0.36 :
Act, 2017 20 Authority

Basad on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, no amount has been surmendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the
order is not applicable to the Company.

{a) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or
in payment of interest thereon to any lender

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not declared a
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. Accordingly, paragraph
3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{c) According to the information and explanatians given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, term loans were applied for the purpose far which the loans were obtained,

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, no funds raised on a shori-term basis have bean utilized for long term

purposes.

{e) According to the information and explanations given o us and on an overall examination of
the batance sheet of the company, we report that the Company has taken funds from
following entities and persons on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries
associates or joint ventures as per details below:

Name Name ufihn i
sserhobet o Amaun ‘m?nltlm Rel :'dl;lm’:u;m
fund taken  jender | involved jo elation ich fund
' venture, utilized
. associate |
: Bajaj =
|
Compulsorily | Finsery Vidal Health Wholly- E:E-:‘!r;tmﬂr:: of
Convertible Health | Rs.59.98 Cr | Insurance TPA owned | oy :y
Loan Limited (VHITPA) Subsidiary | \oro

() According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries or associates. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is nat
applicable to the Company -

oF




{x}

xi)

i)

i i)

(iv]

(xv)

{xvl)

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year and hence the question of whether money raised were applied for the purposes
for which those are raised does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the Crder i not
applicable to the Company

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) during the year and hence the guestion of whether the
requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied
with and the whether funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds
were raised does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company.

{a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reporied during the year.

{b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by us
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government

{c) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we report that no whistle blawer complaints were received during

the year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014, Accerdingly,
paragraph 3{xii)(a) to (c) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given {0 us,
all the transactions entered into with the reiated parties during the year are in compliance with
Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the standalone financial statements as required by the Indian accounting standard Related
Party Disclosures {Ind AS 24)

In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an Internal Audi
system and is also not required to have an Internal Audit System as per Companies Act 2013.

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the
Company has not entered intc any non-cash transactions with its direciors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the Company.

{a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)

(b} Based on our audit procedures and according 1o the information and explanations given o
us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly. paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable lo the Company.

(c) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given fo
us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations

.




made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence the guestions of fulfiliing critena of a CIC,
and in case the Company is an exempted or unregistered CIC, whether it continues to fulfill
such criteria, do not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi){c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company,

(d) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to

{xvii)

{ pewiii}

(i)

)

(a)

(B)

us, there are 18 Core Investment Company/Companies (CIC) in the Group (basis definition
of *“Companies in the Group® as per Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
20186) as at the end of the reporting period which are unregistered with the Reserve Bank of
Irctia.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given 10 us,
the Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and immediately preceding
financial year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this
clause is not applicable.

On the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management pians, we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report of the Company's capability of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheat date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting s based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the company as and when they fall due.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us,
in respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has not yet completed the period of six
months fram the end of the financial year as specified under the second proviso to sub-section
{5) of section 135 of the Act for transfer of the unspent amount, and accordingly, the requirement
to transfer the amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act within such period is not
yet applicable as at the date of this repart.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the infermation and explanations given to us,
the company is not required to transfer unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of
the said Act, pursuant to ongoing project to special account in compliance with provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants

Partner

Membership No. 208645, -

)

UDIN: 25208545BMNSIX2770

Place of Signature; Bangalore
Date: 21% April 2025



Annexure B

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report
of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

\We have audited the internal financial controls with reference io financial statements of Vidal Healthcare
services Private Limited ("the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and malntaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mote issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completenass
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required undear the
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act’).

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference o
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Mote
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial confrols with reference to financial statements werg
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respacts.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Cur audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error

\We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis far our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed 1o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabllity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabie detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authaorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) prowide

Firms Mg Ms.
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reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, of
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial contrals with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deleriorate

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal finrancial contrals with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

(the “Guidance Note’).

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.0038605/5200018

Firm Pege. Mot
7 | ppminieaeell

Seethalakshmi M\,
Partner g
Membership No. 20858 0AL%
UDIN: 2520B545BMNSIX2770

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Date: 21 Apnl 2025
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 March 1015
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VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN : UT4900KA2010PTCOS4928

Regd. Office : 1st Floor, Tower 2, SJR | Park, EPIP Zone, Whitefield, Bangalore - 560 066
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March 2025
All amounis are in Lakhs, unbess otherwise specified

For the vear ended For the year ended

PAETRAA NOTER 31 March 2015 31 March 2024
Income

Revenue from operaiions 23 4,056,584 2.E08.10
Criher income 4 652104 5,714.41
Tatal Income 4,708.88 8,612.51
Expenses

Employee benefit expense P 1,303 .45 TI6.88
Finance cost 16 450,47 3586
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 27 327.30 251,70
Other expemses 28 2.516.11 2,286.62
Total Expenses 4,637.33 3,304.06
ProfitiLoss) before tax T1.55 531845

Income tax expense

Cumeni tax 130,16 63787
Tax of Earlier Years 17.53 -
Dieferred tax charge'icredit) (83.68) {61.63)
404 576.24
ProfitiLoss) before 1ax 7.51 4,752.11
(diher comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified 1o statement of profit and loxs
(1) Remeasurernent of the net defined benefit labality (574} (5.58)
{1y Fair value changes in equity instruments through ather comprehensive income (8.83) Tk
(i1} Income tax relating to nems that wall not be reclassified w0 profit or loss 120 1.40
Total (iher comprebensive income {15.38) 12.27
Taotal comprehensive income Tor the year (7RG} 4, T4 48
Earning per equity share (nominal value of share INR 10)
Basic 2 03g 268 48
Difuted i 038 23802
Material sccounting policics 2
The noics referned 10 above form an integral pan of the stindalone financial satements.
Ad per our repon of even date anached
for PEF Sridhar & Santhanam LLFP for and an behalfl of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Firm registration number . 5200018
B~
% fl S lll,r-
) b i |
S S
G
Secthalakshmi M S 5 Devang Pravin Mody
Pariner Managing Drector Diroctor
Membership number: 208545 DI~ 73937 DIN : 07794726
Place: Bengalury Place: Pune Place; Pune
Date : 215t April 2025 Date - 2131 April 2025 Daie : 215t April 2025
r1 g-"
el il
I Natasi ChbdviAjay Saraf
Company Secretary Chief Fmancial Officer
Place: Pune Place: Pune

Diate : 215t April 2025 Dase : 2151 Apn| 2023




VIBAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN : U749 A0 0FTC44% 1R

Regd Office : Isd Flssr, Tower 1, SIR | Fark, EPIF Zose, Whiteflebd, Bangulore - $60 06é
Stamdalone Cashflow Statement For the vear ended 11 March 1025

All amemris are in Lakhs, undess otberwise specified

For the year ended Far the vear ended
N1 March T0I5 31 Marnch 2024
For the year ended For the year ended
EARTICIRARR 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A Cash flaws from opersting scibvities:
PrafitiLosw) before aa .48 falma
Adjastmwis ;.
Depreciation and amartisatan 1750 bLif ]
Provisions for employee sicck option scheme - 15,82
inierest income [652.0: ) PXBLA0)
Laga om Sale of livestment 25 BI57T
Fanance cost 4347 14.86
Uhperating ensh flows hefore working capirsl changes 478 #054,02
Warking capital changes;
Trade recenvablen 307,25 (130,54}
Fananiual sty TET.23 428 89}
Dhtkeer mety (24114 61354
Pronmiisen L] LI&
Tradde Pryabies {1077} 7590
Fameal Leafilriigs 105616 TLI8
Diher habalities [LRL T 550,16
Canhs il i Speratinns 1. AVR.5H 6,8015.92
Direct laxes paid. met of refunds J65.8T) {ITAD)
et qash generated fram operating activities i 1071 Ty
B, Cash Mows from investing setivities;
Parchass af property. plant aod eguipment {136,500 [2-25)
Payment for smungibles (482.13) (¥73,14)
Lian fo & subssdiary 16, %57.85) {134.25)
Lizam given | (10) Giser eniities & 400 (0 % A4l (H3)
Imvestmeni e subsadiaries (E2.31) =
Pruceeds frons sale of investemem 400 (18,39
Interest rooeavid 435.13 T4.51
Nt cash used in investing astivities {1.745068) {5.853.54)
. Cash Naws from fimancing activities:
Hepaymmen) of bosrmwisgs {5.678.80) FLLERL]
Procords from the bormrwings 592382 =
Proceeds from insue of Eguaity 2213 -
Repavenent of prissipal partien of lexss Habitities {200.08) {159,601
Finance ¢oa paid (47784 (12123
Net cash used bn Nnancing sctivities EE] ST
Mol sncrease in cash and cash equivalens HTH.68 mas
Cash wnd cash equivalents 3t the beginnang of ihe period 47734 1HL LS
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of ke period 135602 Ak
MNotes to cush flaow statement MR INR.
Compenenits i cash and cash equivalents
Cazh on hand .87 059
Palaner with hanks - -
= it Currend accounts 4k0.313 aT.an
- i depaskit accounty 7282 6,33
I Eizil)
lor PRF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP far and on behall of Bosrd of Directars of
Chanered Accoamants W HEALTHCARE SERVICES FRIVATE LIMITED
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VDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

TN = UT400K 4 181 0P T ORISR
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VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES FRIVATE LIMITED

CIN & UBS 19 RAZS0IFTCOM0L 1S

Regd. Offiee ; Ist Floar, Tawer 1. 5JR | Park. EFIF Zone, Whitelield, Bangalore - 560 066
Notes to Standalene Financial Smtements

L. Rackground of ihe Company

Vidal Healthease Servicer Privaie Limaed | “the Company™), was incorporated on 24th August, 2010 under ihe provisions of Companies Act, 1956 s
classified as Mor-(iovi company and is regisered a1 Registrar of Companics, Bangalore. The Company is an integrated bealth services player offering
wellness and disease management products and servaces lo corporabes.

2. Basis of preparation of Ind AS financial statements

The Ind AS financial ssmements of ibe Company have been prepared in accardance with Indian Accousting Swandards {Ind AS) motified under the
Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from tins to time) and presentation requirements of Divisian 1 of Schedule 111 to
the Compagies Act, 2003

The financial ssstements of the Company for all penods up 1o and mclading the year ended March 31, 2024 were prepared o accordance with
scoounting sandards motified under Section 133 of the Act. read together with the Compankes { Accounts) Rules, 2004 (a5 amended) (Indian GAAP).
These fmancial stnements for the year ended March 31, 2025 are the first fnancisl sistements of the Company prepared in sccondance with Ind AS.
Refer note 45 fior an explanation of hiw the transiton fram previous GAAP (Indian GAAP) fo Ind AS hes affected the Company’s financial position,
fmancial performance and cash flows

The Ind AS financial statements kave been prepared on a hastorical cost basis, except for assets and Habilities which are requined 1o be measured at fair
vabue. The Ind AS financial statements are presenssd in Indian Rupees (“Ra.") and all vabues are roended 10 the nearest kakhs, except when otherwise
imdscaled

L1 Swmmsry of Maferial sccounting policies

(a) Current versus son-curreni classification

The Schedube IE] to the Act requires assets and habilities 1o be classified 35 either curvent or poa-currest. The Company presenis assens and labilinies in
thie balance sheet based on current! non-current clenfication

Assets:

Am nsset is classifiod 4 a current when i i
expected 1o be realored of intended o be sold or consumed m normal operaling cyche;
held primanly for the purpose of rading;
expected o be realred within twelve months aflér the reporiing perod; ar

cash or cash cguivalest unless restricied from being exchanged or used 1o settle & lsabality for ot least twelve months after the reporting perwnd.

Al oiber assets are classified as non-cuwment.

ILkabilities:
A liabiliny s carrens when!

expected o be soriled in nomal eperstng cycle,

held primarily for the purpose of trading:

due 1o be settled within rwelve mombs afier the reponing period; or

there is no unconditional rght 1o defer the settlement of the Lisbikity for at beast taelve months after the reporting peniod.

+ Dieferred tan aascts / Habilitics are classified o pon-curred.
The Compamy classifies all other liabikities a3 mon-currenl.

Ohperating Cyele
The operating cycle o the time berwesn the scquisition of asets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has

identified rwebve moaths & its operating cycle.

Iy} Farelgn Curreney Transactions

(1) Functisnal snd presentatiom currency

lierrs included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary cconomic envisannent in which the enticy operases {"the
fursctsona] currency’ | The financial stadements ase presented in Indian rupee (Ra§, which s the Company’s fanchonal and presentslon curfency




VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES FRIVATE LIMITED

CTN : USRS 199RKAZGEFTCRI2 IR

Regd. Office : 15t Floor, Tower I, SJR | Fark, EPIP Zone, Whitelield, Bangalore - 560 066

(i} Transacthons and balamnces

On initial recognition, all foresgn curréncy Erandactsons are recorded by applving to the forcign currency amounl ihe exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency af the daie of the transaction, Gama/Losses arising out of fluctuation m foreign exchange rase between the
transaction dae and senbement dale are recognised in the Swemen aff Profi and Loss.

All monetary asseis and lialitics in foreign cuzrencees are resiaied ot the year end pi ihe exchange mic prevailing ai the year end and the exchange
differences are recognesed in the Ststement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items ihet are measured in terms of histoncal cost in & foreign currency are anslated using the exchange rates al the dates of the mnital
Iransacons.

(b Fabr value measurement

Accounting polices and disclosures require measurement of fue vabae for both financial and non-financial aeses

Faar vabue is the price ihat would be received 10 seil an asset or paid 1o transfer & lishility o an orderly mamsaction between market participants ai the
measureenent daie. The fabr valoe measarement (8 based on the presumprion that the ransaction o sell the azset or ransfer the liabiliny wmies place either:
- In the principal market for the assel or Hability ar

- i the absence of o principal markei, in the most sdvaniageoas masket far the asset or [sahility.

The prencipal or the most advaniageous market muss be acoessible by the Conspany. The fair value of an asset or o liability 15 measered using the
msmmptions that market partscipants would use when precing the sfset or lsbility, ssuming thai market participanis act in theer cconomasc best imteresi.

The Company wses valuation sechmigues that are appropriase in the cucumsiancss and for which sufficient dem & svailable o measure fair valoe,
maximising the use of redevant ahservable inputs and munimising the use of unabservable inpuls

Fasr values are caregonsed inwo differcnt bevals m o fadr value hierarchy based on ithe mputs wsed in the valuation wechniques. as foliows,

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjssied) i setive markens for sdescal assews or habalnies

Level 2; Inputs other than quoted prices included i Level | that are chesrvable for the aseet or lability, elther directly (Le. as prices) of indirectly (Le.
derived from prsces).

Level 3: Inpuis for the assei or labality thas are nod based on observabie masicet data {enobservable inputs)

When measuring the far valoe of an asset or & habality, the Company uses observable market data as far a5 possible. [N ihe mpues used o measare the Bir
vahie of an asset or a liability fall inbo different levels of the fair value hierarchy, them the fair valise measurement is categorised in ils emlirety 0 the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level mpui thai is significant to the entire measarement,

The Campany recognizes ransfers berween levels afithe fair value hierarchy of the end of the reponting period duning whach ibe change has occumed.

i) Basis of measurement
The financial stalemenis have been prepared on the krinrical cosl hass except for the following ibems:
- Cenain financial assets and liabilivies : Mezsared a1 fair value

(e} Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the fimancial stasements in coaformity with Ind AS requires managemiest 1o make estimates, judgements and assumptiond. These
estimases, judgments and assumpisons affect the spplication policses and reporied amousis of the asseis and liabilides, the disclosare of contmgent asseis
and linbilities =t the date of financial satements and reporied amounts of revenoe and expenses during the period. Accountmg estimates could change
Tromm peruod 10 period. Actual resulis could differ from those estimates. Approprisie changes in the esiimates are made as and when management becomes
wware of changes in circemslances. surtounding the estimates. Changes m 1be estimates are effected in the financeal ssements in the penod in which the
changes ase made amd, il manerial, such effect are disclosed in the notes o financial sriementa

Properiy, plant and equipment and ininngible ssseis

The depreciation / amartisation af property, plant and equipmeni and intsngible assets is derived on determining an estimate of an asset’s expected uschl
life amd the expected reshtual valwe ot the end of its hife, The useful lves and residual values of Compary's assets are detérmaned by mansgement af the
time of acquisibion of asssl and is reviewed persadically, including 3l each financial year emil. The Hves are based on historical expernience with similar
asseis as well as snticipation of future evenis, which may impact iber Iife.




VIDAL HEAL THCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN : URS199K A2 PTCOM21S

Regd, Officr : It Floor, Tower 2, SIR | Park, EPIP Zone, Whitefield, Bangalore - $60 066
Defined benefit plans

The cos ol e defined benefit plan and the present valise of the obligation are determuned wsing sctuanal valustion. An actusrial valuation invelves
various sssumnpisons that may differ from actual developmenis in the fissre. These include the determination of the discount rate, (ature sabary increases
i martality rares. Dhue 10 b complesstses mvolved in the valustson and s long-term natiare, o defined benefit obligation is highly semsitive 1o changes
in these assumplions. All assumptions are reviewed ai each repariing daie:

The parameter most subject to change b the discount rate, In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the imeeesl mies of government bonds where remsining maturity of such band cormespand to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

The mariakity rae 15 based an publscly svailshie monalivy mbles: Those monakity 1ables tend 1o change only at interval in responss to demogrephic
changes. Fumire salary increases and gratusty incresses are based on expected futwre inflation rades.

Fair value measarement of fanncial insiramenis

When the faor valoes of fmancial sssets and financil liakilitics recorded in the balance shoet cannot be messured based on quobed prices in active
markets, tbeir fair value is measured using internal valuston techibigoes. The ipuls 1o these models are taken from observable markets where possible.
bt where this & oot feasible, o degree of judgement is requined in establishing fair valwes. Judgements mclude considersizons af mputs such as biguidity
rizk, credal risk and volsility. Changes in assumptions about these Dsclors could affect the reporied fair value of financisl instramenty

ifi Hevenue recognition

Revenue from conmrects wilh customers i recogmised when conrol of the services are transferred o the cusiomer af an amount that reflecis the
conssderation io which the Company expects io he entitied in éxchangs for those services.

Revenue 13 recognired to the extent it i probable that the ecosomic benefits will flow 1o the Company and the revenue can be reliably messiured,
regardless of when the paymeni & being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of perfrmance obligation |8 measisred o1 the amount of transaction price
inet of discounts) allocated to tha performance obligation. The trarsaction price of services rendered is net of vanisble considerntion. The Company hus
concleded thai it is the principal in sy revenue amangemsenis. The revenus is recognased net of mxes.

Inieresi Income

Inigrest income v recagmized asing the effectwe mteresi rmie method. The effective imteresi rabe is the raie that discounts esarmated futare cash receipts
tlraugh ihe expecied hife of the finsncal asset 1o the pross carmying amount of the financial aaset. Interest imcome 15 included nder the head “other
incame” in the statensent of profil and Joss

igl Imcome Tan
Income-tax comprises currend and deferred tax, 13 i recognised in profit or loss except 1o the exienl that i relaies w an jbem recognised directly 1 equity
or in other comprehemive mcoms

(i) Corrent tax

Corrent tax compriscs the expected tax payable ar receivable on ibe tmxable mcome or loss for the vear and any sdjustment o the tax payable ar
receivable an respeet of previous years, The amoust of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected 1o be paid or reccived sfier
considering the uncertamey, if any, relsted 1o meome taxes, |t 5 measured wiing tax races (end x laws) enacted or substantively enacted by (ke reparting
daie.

Curnent fax awseis and current ta labilines are offser only (7 there s a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it 15 uviended to
reakise the asset and seribe the lisbilidy on a net basis or simultaneously,

i} Deferred tax

Dieferred tax s recagnisad in respect of temporary differences between the carmying amouwnts of assets and liabilities for Ansncial reporting purposes and
the coamespanding smoumis sed for omticn purposes.

Deferred max assets are recognised w the expent thai it is probable that funere mable profiss will be available sgainst which they con be used. The
exutence of unused tax losses i strong evadence that furure tusable profit may not be available. Thersfore, i case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognises a deferred 1ax asset onby 10 the exient thai o has sufficient iaxable wemparary differences or there is convincing ather evidence that
sufficient tashle profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be reslised. Deferred tax aasess - unrecognised of recognised, are
reviewed at each reporfing daie and are recognised’ redwced 1o ihe exsent thas is b probable’ no longer probable respectively that the related tax bemefit
wall b reakised.

Deferred tax is messured ai the tan rates that are expecied 1o apply i the penind when the asser is realised or the lability i seitled, based on the laws that
hawe been cnacved or subsiantively enscied by the repanang date.

The measarensont of delbermed tax reliects the tax consequences that wosld follow from the manner in which the Compasy expects, a1 the reponing daie,
o recover of senle the carrying amoant of i assets and labilities.
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{h} Property, plant and equipment

{1} Recognition snd measurement
Oin transatban 1o Ind AS Le. April §1, 3033, the Company has elecied 1o contimue wili the camying value of all of its propery, plam aad equipment (FPE)

recagnised as at Apnil 01, 2023 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use thal cammynng valise 85 the deemed cost of the PPE.

Property, plamt and equipment, is sted o com, mel of sccumulated deprecintion and sccumulated ampairment losses, if any. Such cost meludes the cost
af replacing pari of the plant and equipment and sdpusiments for the incentives of descounts received if any, if the recognilion crilena &re met

The estimated useful life of tangible assets are as below:
Farticulars Useful life (vears)
]
L]
5

Eﬂlﬂcrw-fﬂ.mﬂm
Mlotor Vehicles
Oiffice equipment
Lessehold improvements i amortized an o strasghi-lone bhasas over the perod of lease.

(i} Depreciation
Diepreciateon 1 caleulated on & straight line basis over the useliul lves of the sets. The management believes thi these estimated wseful Hves reflect far
approximation of the period over whach the assets aro bkely o be used.

(il Disprasal of waseiy

An jtem ufpfw, p'l'mﬂl:qu.ipmqﬂ and any significart pan initially recognised iy derecogrised upon dispossl ar when o fulure seonamic benefits
ane expected lrom its ase or disposal. Amy gain or loss arsing oa de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference heirween the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying ameunt of the assct) i mcludod m ibe statement of profit and loss when the asse s derecognized.

The residusl values, oefial lives ond methods of deprecisthon of property, plant and equipment ase reveewed ab cach financaal year end and sdjusted
prospectively, if appropriace
iivi Intamgible asveis

COin transition 1o Ind AS, the Company kas elected o conbinoe with the carryng valoe of all of intangible assets recognised as ai Apnl 01, 2023 measwred
as per the previcus GAAP and wse that carrying value as the deemed cost,

lmiamgubbe asseis scquired separasiely are messared on imitial recognition at cosd. Following initisl mcognition. intangible sssety are carmied ot cost less any
accumulated smaortisation and socumulsted pmpeirmendt losses. Gams or losses anding from de-recognifion of an mtangible asset are measured as the
difference between the nei disposal procesds and the canrving amount of the assei &nd are recognised in the siatement of profit and loss when the assed s
derecognised

The estimaed useful lfe of Inmngrhle assets are 25 below:

% thl.lﬁ.ﬁmnjl{
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iLLensesy

Lease comiracts entened by the Company majorky pertaias Tor buaildings taken on lease 1o comduct its business in the ordinary course

The Company 53 0 lesses

The Company applics a single recognition and measurensent spproach for all lesses, except for shan-temm lessss and leases of low-value axsels. The
Company recagnises lease liabilities 10 make lease payments and night-of-use assets representing the right 1o use the underlying asseis,

The Campany determines the lense term as the non-cancellable period of a kease, iogether with both periods covered by an option 1 extend the kease if
the Company i reasonably conain to cxercise that option; and periods covered by an opticn to lerminge the lease if the Company 15 reasonably certan
oot o exnercise that aption. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain 1o exercise an aption 16 extend & lease. oF Bot b SXETCESS 20 option 1o
terminate o lesse, it comiiders all relevant facts and circumstances that create an ecanomic incentive for the Company to exercise the option 1o extend the
Jesse, ar pat o exercise the option io lerminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there s a change in the non-canceiisble peiod of & lease.

The Company wsed the following practical sxpedienis when applying Ind AS 116 :

+ Applicd 8 single discount rate ko portfolio of leases winks similar charscaeristics.

= Applsed the exemption nod 1o recognise right-of-use assets and labalitbes for leases with less than |2 months of lease (2em and leases of low value.
+ Excluded initial direct costs from messuring the night-of-ase ssset ot the date of mitial appheation.

* Lised hindsight when determining the lease term if the comlract contains options 1 exend or tevminate the lease.

(i) Right-of-use nssets

The Company recognises right-of-uwse assets at the commencement date of the lease {ie., the date the underlying asset is available for wie), Right-oluse
a85cts are mexsiarod af cost, less amy accumulated depreciation and impakrment losses, and sdjusted for any remeasurerment of lease lsbilivess. The cost of
right-of-use assets inclades the amount of lease Labilites recognised, inial direct costs mcwrred, and ease payments made ot or before (he
commencement dste less any [ease incentives recenved. Righi-of-use assets are deprecisted on a straight-line baszs over the shoner of the bease term omd
the estimased usefial lives of the asseis

If ownership of the leased asser ransfers o the Company ot the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimased usefil life of the asset.

1l Lease Habilities

At the commmencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease labilities measared a1 the peesent valus of lexse payments 10 be mads aver the
lease term. The lease pavments inclode fixed payments {metuding in-substnce fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
paymrenis that depend on an index or & rabe. and amounts expecied 1o be paid under residual vilue guarentess. The lease payments abo inchide the
exercise price of 2 purchase opticn reasonably certain fo be exereised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the leass, if the lease
terim reflects the Company exercising the option 15 termnate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or 3 rate are recognised
eapenses (unliss they ane incurred o produce inventonics) in the pesiod i which the event or candition that iriggers the payment acours
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i Provislon, contingent Habilities and contingent awsety

A provision & recognised il as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constractive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and & is
protable tiat an cutflow of sconomic benefits will be required 1o settle the ohligation. Provisions are deterrmned by descounting the expected futune cash
flowws (represeniing the best estimate of the expenditure requined o senle the present obligntion at the balance sheet dae) ot 3 pre-tax rate that reflecis
current marksi assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liabikity. The unwinding of the discoun! i recognised wnder finance
costs. Expected fiuture operating losses are nod provided for. Provision in respect of boss contingencies relating to clamms, ltigations, assevsmients, fines
and penalties are recognissd when if s probable that & Lability has been moarred and the amoum can be estimated reliably

Contingent linbilities and contingent sssets:

A contimgemt lability exists when there b5 a poasible bet not probable obfigation, or a present ohisgation that may, but probably will mog, requare an
oulflow af resources, or & presend obligation whose ameust cananat be estimated relisbly. Contingern lishilities do pot wammni provissons, bat are
dischosed wnless the pousibility of outflow of ressarces is remats.

[k} Emplaves beneflis
(i} Shart-term employee benefits

Liabititics For salares, ineluding fion-monctary benefits that are expecied ta be sertled whally within 12 months afber the end of the persod in which the
emplovees render 1he relased service are recogrised i respect of employess’ services wp o the end of the reporiing penod and are measured om an
undiscousiled basis at the amownts expected 1o be paid when the [Eabilitie are seitled. The liabilities are presested as current employes benefit obligations
in the balance sheel.

(H) Defimed contribation plans

A defined contribution plan s a posi-employmens benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions (sto a scparate eotity and will bave no legal
or cansimactive obligation 1o pay forther amoants. The Company malkes speeified monthly coniributions fowerds Government administered provident
fund scheme and other funds. Obligations for contributions 16 defined contribution plass are recognised a3 an emploves benefln expense in statement of
pratit and loss in the periods during which the relsied services are rendered by employees,

(l) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, o defined benefit plan (the 'Gramity Plan®) covering eligible smployees in sccordance with the Payment of
Girabuaty Act, 1972, The Grataity Plan provides o lump fum payment 16 vesied employees &l nevinement, death, incapaciusion or wrmination of
empboyment, of an amourd based on the respective employee’s salary, The Compary's liability is actuarially detérmined (asang the Projecied Uni Cradia
methsad) at the end of each year. Actuarial loases/gamns are fecognized in the ather comprehensive income i ibe year in which they arise.

Compensaied Absences: Accumuliied compensated absences, which are expecied 10 be availed or encashed within 13 months from the end of the vear
are treated 25 shart lerm employee benefits. The chligation towards the same is measared at the expected coat of sccumulsting compenasted abscnces 48
the additional amount expected to be paid as  result of the unised entilbement a8 af the year end.

Agcunsubiied compensated absenoes, which are expecied to be availed or encashed beyord 12 montks from the end of the year end are treated as other
i} Financisl instroments

A financial insremest is sy contract that gives rise 1o o financial asset of ane entity and a faancial liabilicy or eqaity instrament of another enity

(i} Imitial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabalstses are matially recognased when the Company becames a party 10 the cantracrual proviswons of the mymament. A
financial avset of fnencial Habality 15 iitially measared & fair value, for an Hem mot ot fir valse through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that
are directly asinbaiable fo 1is acquisition or e,
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(i) Classification and subsequent measarement

Financial assets

Al financial assets excopt Trade receivables are iminally measured ui fair value , for an ivem not at fir value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
transaction cosis that are directly afiribuiable 8o ds scquaition ar essue.

Subiequent measurement: For the purpose of subsequent measarement, financial assets are categorised as ander:
- Amnftised gost;

- Fair Value ikrough Other Comprebensive Income (FVOCT) - oqaity investment; or

- Fair Value ikrough Profil or Loss (FVTPL)

-Euity instnaments measured i far value throsgh other comprebensive income (FYTOCT)

Fimanceal assets are not reclassified subssquent to their initinl recognitson, except if and 10 the period the Company chasges (15 basiness mode] for
managing financial assets

A fenascial asset s measured ot amorised cost if it meets both of the followmng condinons and s ot designated =3 o FYVTPL:

~ the asset 15 held within o boginess model whose objective is 1o bold assets to callec! contraciaal cash flows; and
= the contrschesl termm of the faancaal assel give fse on specified dates to cash fows that are solely pryments of principal and interest oa the prncapal
ANt outsianding

Financial assers af FVTPL: These assets are subsequently messared at fair value with Net gainy and losses, meluding any interest of dividend income,
recognised (m profit or loss.

Fimsncual assets af amartised cost: These ssets are subsequently measused a2 amomtised oo wsmg the effecnve iomerest meahod. The smarmsed co
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gams and kases and mmipairment afe recognased bn proflt or koss. Any gain o loss on
erecagnition i necognised in profit or koss

Equaty investments at FYOCL: These assets are subsequently measuzed ot fair valoe, Dividends are recognised as meome in profit or |oss wnless the
dividend clearly represents a necovery of pan of the cost af the mvestment. Other net ghins and loasss are recognised in OC] and are not reclussified 1o
jprofit or ko,

Financial Habilities:

Finsncial hiabilitses are classified as messwred a1 amortised cost ar FYTPL. A financial lisbility is classified as at FVTPL of it is classified a5
hedkl-for-rading, ar o & & derrvative or it i desiganted as sach on mital recogrition. Financial babilities at FYTPL are messured a1 fair vahse and net
giens and losses, includmg any inieres expense, are recognised in simtement of profil or Ioss, Crber Anancial liahilities are subiequently measured af
amartised cost using the effective interest method Inlenesl expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are rocognased in stasement of profit or loss.
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i) Derecoynition
Financial assers

A Financial asset is primarily derecognised when the right 1o receive the contractaal cash Nows in & ransaction in which substantialkby all of the risks and
rewnrds of ownership of the finances| asset sre mnsferred or in which the Company seither ransfers nor remins substanially all of the fisks and rewands
ol ownership and does nat relasn cantrod of the fnancial asset

I the Company cniem inio iranssciions whereby it wransfers asseds rocognised on s balance sheet, bui retains erther all ar substantially all of the nsks
and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets 2re nat derecognived.

Fimancial Habibithes
The Company derecognises a financial lebility when s contracrual obliganons sre discharged or cancelled or-expined.

The Company also derecognises & financial habality when is terms are modified and the cash fows under the modified 1erms are substantally difTerenl
In this case, o new fimancial lability based on the modified tenms i recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
Iiahility extingushed and the new financial liabilicy with modified 12ems is recognised o profit or boss.

(i) Offsetting

Fimsncul assets and financial Babalsises are offset and the net amount reparied in the balance sheet if there 1s a currently and legally enforceable right o
st ol the amounts and 1t intends either 1o setibe them an 8 net bases or 1o realise the asset and seftle the lability simultaneoasly.

imj Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cagh equivalents o the balance sheet and cash flow statcmen! comprise cash ot banks and oo hand snd short-term deposits with an oniginal
maturity of three months or less, which ane subgect % an insignificant nsk of changes in value.

(mh Cash Mow statement
Cash Aows are reported ising the isdirect method, whereby net profit’ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of tansactions of a non-cash natare and

any deferrals or sccruals of pasi or future cash receipts of payments and dem of income of ¢xpenses associated with mvesting or fnascing cash flows.
Thie cash flaws from regulas revenue genesating (operating setividbes), investing and financing activities of the Company sne segregated.

3. Recent Accounting Pronosmcemenis

ST A, has mot natified any new siandards or amendmenes @ the existing nandards applicable w the Company.
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4. FROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

Gross Carrving Amount OFFICE EQUIPMENTS  COMPUTERS Motor Vehicle TOTAL
Balance as at 01 April 2023 1.06 .34 - 13,40
Additions .49 L.78 - 225
Disposals / transters . -

Value of pssets retired -
Balance as a1 31 March 2024 T.55% B.10 . 15.65
Additrons . 24.010 132.50 156.51
Dnsposals / transfers - - -
Walue of assets retired =
Balance as at 31 March 2025 7.55 3211 132.50 172.16
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 01 April 2023 =
Additions 231 575 .06
[hspaosals  transfers - : :
Value of assets retired -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 .3 575 - B.06
Additions 2,37 3.20 20.08 25.566
Disposals | transfers - - - -
Value of azsets retired - - - -
Balance as a1 31 March 2025 4.68 .95 20.09 33.72
Met carrying amaouni

Balance as at D) April 2023 7.06 .34 - 13.40
Balance as at 31 March 2024 5,124 236 - 7.59
Balance as at 31 March 2023 187 13.14 11141 138.44

O transition to Ind AS, Group has elected to adopt the previous GAAP carrying value a5 deemed cost

S 6&7T HilhtufUnﬁmnlldluhn‘iﬂtm;

- Intangible assets under
Giross Carrying Amount ROLU Imtangible Asscts developmeat
Balance as at 01 April 2023 9.80 A58.11 11.95
Additions - 168.54 16.57
Dnsposals ¢ transfers - 11.95
Value of asseis refired
Balance as at 21 March 2024 9.80 T26.65 16.57
Additions L84 47870
Dhgposals | transfers . . 16.57
Value of assets retired
Balance as at 31 March 2025 20169 1.205.35
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2021 = = =
Additions 4.36 231928 -
Disposals | transfers -
Value of aszets retired
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4.36 13928 =
Addinons 14.04 287.60
Drisposals / transfers - -
Value of assets retired 2 -
[Balance as st 31 March 2025 18.40 516.88% -
Met carrying amaunt
Balance as a1 01 April 2023 .80 358.11 11.95
Balance as at 31 March 2024 545 487.37 16.57
Balance as at 31 March 2025 .19 6TH.48 -

On transition 1o Ind AS, Group has elected to adopt the previous GAAP carmyving value as deemed cost,

AR AT,
.-" \.:..-_."
T ] [T

l | p——
|-. ... _-'. »

i




Intangible assets under development ageiog schedule

As atdl March 2028
Particulars Less than 1 vear | 1-2 years | 2-3 years m?ﬂ:‘“ 3 Total
Projest in progress il il Wil Mil il
ﬂwﬂy guspended | Nil il Wil Ml il
|Total Nil Nl Nil Nil Nil
As ot} March 2004
Particalars Lets than 1 vear | 1-2 vears | 2-3 years o g 2 Tutal
Project m progress 16.57 6,57
Projects tempornly suspended
|Tnll 16.57 - - - 1657
As atl April 2013
Particulars Less than 1 vear | 1-2 vears | 2-3 vears Miers.thean 3 Toial
Project in progress 11.9% 11.93%
Prapects lempaoranly suspended
Tatal 11.95 - - - 11.95

Intangsble assets under development are based on intenal technical feasibility study carmied out by Management
with the intention to complete the self generated inangible assets. Manngement has assessed that such intangible
assets will generate future economic benefits for the Company and thenefore miet the capitalisation critena in

accondance with Ind AS 38 - “Intznpible Assets™
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VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Santey bo Standslons Financial Seatements

All amaunts are in Lakhs, unbess otherw lse specifbed

B Fimnncial nssers

B{n). lnvesimenis

TICULARS A i Ak Al A al
AR 3sa March 2015 st March 2024 lnt April 2023
Ungquated Equity Instrumenii:
Investmant in wholly owmed swhskdiaries at cost
IS0 900 (FY 2024 10,350,900, FY 2023 10,550,500 ) egery shares of Vidal Healiys TRA Privae 104169 21083 6% 20063 6%
Limited
SIL (FY 2024: ) 4% 100, FY 2023 ;149,100 equity shares of Intent heatth Technobogies Pyt Lid - FERT 14.41
— g - 2,455,060
FY 1023 2498 30000 cquity shares of Vidal Health Best Docion Private Limaied
Leww: Provision foe demintion in the value of lnvestmin -1,689 62
Vaprial contmibwition on comoessional Joan 1o Vidal Health TPA Private Limvited 1,120.08
EMub {peevious vear: Nill equity shares of VH Internstioeal LLC (8 1
35000000 (FY 2024 3 500,000 | FY 2005 5,500,000 | equity shares of VI Medears Privaie Limiied LI ] O ) B0 M)
399608 1ATAG0 (YR
Hibj. Leans Becrivable
ARTICULARS A mn Asar Aal
. 5 Alwt March 0I5 Niwi March T024 151 April 2913
Cansidered posd, Unsecared
Loam is relaied parties, subseqeencly messwred s smartised £o9 sod repayabbe sn demand
Ineerearparats bokns 0 subudirsss 47652 HIATS EREEL
Liss: Pronasion For boss allowance . . W8 R0 40
8476.51 BIETS [T
Bicp. Ouher Fimancial Assety
A mi As At A al
AR it X1nt March 2925 31sd March 2024 15t Aprid 2023
Comsidered good, Unseeured
Security Deposis 127.51 bl i
Mol imvestmeni m sub leases - 124,58 17930
- FT) el
Mo emeat of Bel bivestme st in wub lesses during the yedr
) At Asat
FARTICULARS
Mt March 2025 Alse March 104
Balance af the beginnang of the yeas 22438 379.30
Lenses entered imo dunng ihe yeas + £
Imerest moome secomeied for the year 127 540
Payments received 19017 188,12
Torminatien of Lease Agreement . =
Balance as at the end of the year 4567 Ji4.58
Conirsciusl maturities of mel investment in sub |rases om an osdisoaned valee
Am As a1 As ol
FARTICU
BN SistMarch 2025 JistMarch 2024 lat Ageril 2020
Less tham one wear 4534 | 7920 188.12
Chme 2o Five vears . 454 1311
More than five veam = - "
A5 M 12484 417.14




4, Deferred tun msvety | binbilities

At As As s
!' = Aiwl March 028 Yist March 2024 1ni April 3828
[helerred tus sty
Provmon for emplivee benelfis 15195 5587 386
Allpwances for bad and dessbiiul debes & adhvances 54,00 54 00 111
Excess depreciation provided =s per books over imcomne 1ax law . 13.0u 1% 8§
meenacd expenscy 241 - .
{ehemn =
Hem Sughalining -
Excess af deprocistion on Boll asset, interest om loase lishility and inleress on security deposits over rent = .
PEYTRCER P
Totsl deferred tax aased LY 11271 (LR ]
Dreferred eax lisbilleles
Exzess deprecistion pronided a8 per incoma ta law over buoks 146
Ciratuity pasd in advance . 303 [
Other emporary differences £34 37 247
Total deferred tax Rability &7 6.8 9.18
Dieferred i {liabilicy) ! sesets (seth 199,57 11892 £4.29
10 Advamee Tux Ausers
Amt As Ax sl
PARVILALARS Mat March 2028 3ot March 3624 Ini April 2023
Considered pood, niecured
Advance Tax Assels i A
: : CE28
11, Curreni Financial ssseis
11ia). Ievesiments
PARTIC RS Aot As wt T
st March 1025 Mst March 2004 st Mis
eoted Equity Instruments:
Equity Skares ol Fair Valer threugh other comprehemive imcome (FVOLCT)
12,452 equaty shares af Mew Inda Asssrance Company Limeaed o cost prace of Ra 400/~ per share and
maries value oF Re 158,22 per share (FY 24 market value of Ba 228 93/ per share, FY 27 marked value 1978 2550 1215
of Rs.#7 30 per share, N
19.78 Y] 115
11b). Cush and rush eqguivalents
CULARS Al st As
AR N1si March 1015 Ns Mareh 2024 st Pl ]
Cash on band 287 059 [
Halences with bank . - -
- ik Eurnisn sceoum (LA 47020 4241
« Fined depesin AT1.82 635 56,44
1665 47734 1nm1%
I bieh. Onher Ralasees with Banks
PARTICULARS A i Al i
—— Jist March 2028 Mist March 2004 Int April TO23
Esrmaried Bank Balances - - .
i) Bank Belences kel s Cussadian 299,37
b




10idy Trade recehvables

A nl Asal T
AR Sist Mareh 2035 St March 2034 st Apeil 2023
Froen related pastics £28.12 11684 5351
(kern 01,43 w530 1,157.4%
141954 LIILI4 i,191.2%
Trade Receivabilis
\Unsecured, comsidensd good 1.630.29 132299 1,192.04
Significant Increase is Credin Bk - - -
('redst bmpaired 211,80 213.80 4616
Tatal 1.840.09 1.536,79 113829
Lewn: Loss allowasce (214,53} (214,95} (46.91)
Tatal 1619.54 [EFFNT] 119129
Shoversemt In Provision Far Deubatul Dibis
A ai A af A ai
PARTICULARS ise March 2035 s March 2034 It Aprid 2023
ipening Balance 21455 4691 46,91
Chaige for the year - T4 s
Utilised .
U ragigdd anstunls fEvened & N -
Clening Balance 2114.55 21455 XN
i i{e). Loams Recebvable
- T Asal Asal
i 305t March 2025 3iet March 2624 Ist April 2013
Lasn in related parties, wbsegquently measured ol amoriised cosi
Inierccrporaie Los 3,400,080 -
- 54040, 1M} -
10{f. Other Rnancial assets
& &l L1 As ol
FARTICULARS 1 0w WM i Agril M3
Considered good, Unsecured
Accrued bmierest on Deposits 0,63 .63
Agcrucd Imerest on Lo - 25008 -
Accrued Imerest an loan ko subsidiarics 597 .08 117.08 &5.27
Linhilled Revenue 1176 0757 55,52
Oiiher Receivables from Sumidisne 5601 16,04 B0l.66
Security Deposity (4.7 .
Met (nvestment i sub leases a5 .50 -
{nher Receivables . 5165 T80
w5481 115285 15907
{onsidered doubtful, Unsecared
Agerucd [eenest on loan o subssdianes 6197
Less: Loww allowance for doabiful recenvables . . (561.97)
95462 1,152 84 269,07
12.Cmrrend inx Asseis
Al Al Al
FARTICHLANA Jist Mareh 2025 Jist March 2034 it April M3
Cossidered ged, Unsevured
Cusrrent Tan Assels papl -
FERL T - -
15, (hiber Carrend Asaeis
A ut A i As i
AR AL Sisi March 2005 JiwMarch 2004 i April 2013
Balance with Stsulory Authoriies 148,57 - 54.12
Prepaid Expenses 1912 184 .20
Advance W Employecs 44 I0LTE 445
Advance io Suppliers & Ohbery Hig.43 | AT 713
Less: Provisson ereated for Advasces (306,43 (169.67] (17313}
171.08 1362 (%)
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VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES FRIVATE LIMITED
“aies io Stuadalone Financial Sistements
Al smawnts arv in Lakhs, malies othorwise specilied

Hate 15
. As ol As ol As mt
PARTICALARE Vst March 2028 st March 2024 Ist April 2013
Imstruments that are enrirely in the narare of equin
Equity campomsent of compound fmmmeml mstruments 1ETS.&0 335500 195350
Adddrions durng the yoar = F =
Dorecognised dunng the vear -g_mw -2 -
& 167540 1,955
I, CHhgr Equiry
Securily Premimimn Rewire 6, 14088 586592 §.465.92
Add: Addmion dunng the ven | S05 1T 17174
742303 LRELN ] 5,865,497
Hetnised earnings . Accumulsced defice
Ad the beginning of the vear =1, 16838 5,930.86 5,930, 85
{Less) Add: {Loss} profis for the year T 475204 =
(nher comprebensive moome 1538 1227
ENELE -1, 166.56 =5,930.5%
Dieenred Capital comiribation from Helding company
At the beginning of the year +
Ak muddatian dharing the wear a4 57 # =
L] - -
Fmpdever stack optinns suivianding reserve
Az the beginning of the yesr |, $09.37 85173 H33.73
Emphives compeniaiag sxperses for the year v 15 54 .
Transfer w Securities premium pursuant @ eplion exenise =L S0 37 . .
s Ly BRI
746333 & 486 £R TRA.TY
Secarity Freminm
Eecurity Premmn = used o record premum recerved on issue of ssarrs. The reserve s ubilised m sceond wiih the p ions of Companes Act, 2011
Hetained enrmings | Accamalsted delicis
Retied earnings | Accumubned defice comprisey of the amouses that can he disipboied by the Corpany o dradends (o iy equity share bokdars
Emploves vinek oprions autsisnding reserve
The comployee siock opuiom ootvanding accoum = wed w recogise grani doe far value of te opioss msusd w the employees seder the ersployee's sinck optos plan.
17. Nem Currenl Financisl LisbiSities
A3a} Berrping
Ay at A wl As al
PRIRULAR Hiut March 2425 st March 2024 1at April 2023
Term Losn rem Banks : Secured
Working capiial term losn from RBL Hank a 0,50
Lews: Carreni Maiurmies of Long Term Db = {44 8T}
= 1489
Tevem Loan frsm Fissneisl Instinitions @ Secured
Term lean Bom Kotak Mahindra Invessments Limited s LR
Less: Crarment matureies of long term debt 1 (41 44)
Lisbiliry companent of compound financlal instrements: ssecured
1,700 Na's, 01.1% Compulsanty Camertible Debemurcs of INR 1000000 cach
(Mmrch 31, 302%: 3,700 - 1113 a0
LLingn frosm Hinlding Company i 541 94 . -
494195 Fr L] Mah
4.961.95 HET) was




Mature of Secwrities affered bn respect of Barrsning -

Isrin Less [rom Banks
100% secured by Matiosal Credit Guarantee Trusters Company Lid (NCGTC) s second change on foed déponit and efsine correar asem of the borrower, for both peesess and furre.

Campularily Conyereibds Dibenmres
The compulsandy canvenible debmures ane unsecured.

Lran from halding company s e asecared kodn
Tooms of Begaviient -
Jerm Laas from Banks

Repayainis in 38 insmalmesy comemencng 30 Anpoes 3021

Lerm Lvum (rom Financial e fiteten
Eiepaahle i 13 mosthly masabrstety commencing | Apeil 2021,

Compalsarily Convertibbe Debentures
i, 1% Compulsorily comeertible debentures af TNH 100,000 cach were allomed on 14 June 2013,
Each dck arg fesmpalienly canvenible B wea aguey shares of de Company gqpan the completion of 10 yeans from the date of allcement

Lams frem Hbdine Company (Baini FinServ henlth Limiseds

Loan is compulsinily convenible inle egquity phases of the Vida! Healheare Services Privete Liessted (VHC ) 0t the end of | Gyeses from the dare of receipt of loan by VHC . However. sach of
BFHL and VHT, m their sole discretion, bave the optios 1o conven the said loan imo equisy shares of VEIC prior i expiry of the teaor. In cach isigece, corversion of loan siall be subject in
sipoemls, i any, under applcable law and shall be af a price mutually agreed between AFHL and VHC, sabpeci m valustion by s repiviered valbuer

T70b Loai ahilities
Currenl anld sen-current ol lense liabilitiey
Aja As b sl
PARVHALARY Jist March 2028 Hhan March 2034 st April 2023
Current lease Latility 49.72 156 68 162,86
Seah - Currend heane Rabiliny - .72 13640
9. 72 ps K] .28
T anrracisal maturings of bease labilicies on an ondiscomnied »alue
FARTICULARS
Liss than oo yoar 0,40 19920 16960
e 1o five veans ' po ] 249,50
More than frve yean - ¥ Lz
Sidd 149,40 439.30
Meovrmrsl of lesir Hahilite during the vear
Avat A al
PARTICULARS 3wt March OIS s March 2024
Elalusce 5l the begmning of the yoar 13640 3592
[zases entered into during the year » .
Irmerens Expenses Accoanted for the vrar (rL v ] 36.74
Repaymem of bease labihtsy 19930 189,60
Tomunation of Lease Agreemesi B .
Halsnes @s a0 the ¢nd af the year T 11650
Amsmni Recogaived (0 the Standalone Statenven in of Profli snd Loss
PARTICULARS ey ol
st March 025 3ha March 2024
Emterrsl expenbis on lease lalnities presemed under Finance Coaty - brterest on lense
Tability 1252 674
Amerfisites o pight of we siscts, presenied under Deprecustion & smorizmabos ¢ xpomas -
Amorimates on right of e e (R 438
Shor lerm leabe renas low valiss aasen, presemed pnder Cser experaes - Renl 10ET L
Imseeen Incame om Secuncy Depouiis, presented under other mcomes - [nierest an Security
Dlegeiita Faid (L E ] T
Imzze incosne o0 net Enesimen in leases, presenied wader other mecenes - bmeredl eome
. nex vesiEmem i leases 1117 25.40
Shoet berm dease rem reccipls of bow vabue aiscts, presented under Hevenue fram operstion -
Renisl [scome -
Imterest Expenses on Security Depossts, presenied undsr Finsscs Con - Imezed aa MNet
Irvestmen in Leases il iS50
®1T Ba.14_
1 7(e) Cicher finamcial labdlisies
] Axal A al As
PARTICULAREY Vst March 2025 338 March 2024 15t April 7023
Serpgmity ol pegayvanle on Temmnamion of Lesss - 104,13 T
- 106,12 LE ||




I8 Pravisions

Anwd Aaoal Anad
PARTICULARS ist March 3018 Nist March 2024 st April 2023
oerpensated absences 1541 a6 1305
1541 V.60 1308
19 Curreni financial Babiliibes
i) Wavmigs
As ai As ab As ai
e == st March 2025 Hhan Murch 2024 Tar Agril 2023
Current Maturites of Leng Term Debis : Secured
Wirking capital iemm kean fom RB1L Hank 44.67
Tierm leas freen Kotsk Mahinds [nvenmesn Limaed 51.45
- 6,12
* Rafer sote | 7ia) o desdly af boan
197h) Trude payabies
Asan A &b Ax ai
PR I0ni March 1023 Fsk March 2024 15t Agpril 2023
U'nsecmred
1) ot ciasding dues of nacre and small esserpries [ ] 620 T2
1) el cemutamding, dues of crednom odwer than escro and imall ensenpraes® 41198 22873 153,19
12434 13501 159,30
* Reefier pobe 32 for detsils on aswent Gus 1o Meeo and Sl emerposes
18¢c) Dicher finamcial liabilivies
As at A &l Az al
PANTIULERY st March H1S H1st March 224 it April 2023
Emplover bencliis payabk 79 14 101.14 {383
Chaims Fleal fund i . i
Erscrest Pavable an Lean 169,83
Sacwrity depoil n.-p:,:hleun Termunazion of Lease L1503
136147 FTTHE] [ETET]
20 Uiher current Habsilicies
PARTACILARS MMk 03 aMarehe  laapin
Credaan for capial poaods 44 - 431
Sransory limbiliies A6 4B .68 7486
Lihess 028 0 024
Cumrset Liahilities 1.465.37 1.31E.08 B6S 51
1,556,685 1. 3AT.04 945,18
21 Pranksions
As at A3 &l A3 mt
FARTICULARS Dt Minreh 2028 Fist March 2024 It April 2023
U pmpersated sbeenoes 6.50 643 e
Princrion for contingenc s .59 + .
ety 678 i i
1287 [t 519
I Cureent lay lishilities
As at As &l A an
PARTICLARE Jist March 2025 st Masch 3024 181 April 2023
Provison for imwanos = b -
o Jaa b =




VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES FRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to Standalone Financial Statements

All amaunts are in Lakhs, unbess otherwise specified

11, Revenue from aperations
For the year ended  For the year ended
PARTICULARS 315t March 2025 31st March 2024
Sale of Services 4,056,854 1898.10
4054684 1R98.10
24, Oither income
For the year ended  For the year ended
FARTICHAR 31stMarch 2025 31st March 2024
Imierest on deposits 11.31 118
Imierest on income tx refund . 144
Irierest on loan o subssdiary [ ] 5747
Interest income on boan . 246 80
Income from Sale of Brand 3,350, )
Miscellaneous meome - 024
Interest on Secunity Deposits Paud 1056 9.711
Gaiim on derecognition of fmancial labilitses 1.46 -
Imierest on Met Investment m sub leases 1127 25.40
652,04 5,734.41
15, Employer benefit expense
For the year ended  For the year ended
IR R AR 315t March 2025 315t March 2024
Salanes, bonus & allowances 1,226.03 620,98
Emplavee stock compensation expense 15,62
Recruitment and trainmg expenses 2027 25.70
Contribiution 10 provident and other fands 28.54 26,40
Craiaity expense 13.53 9.39
Sl welfare expenses 15 .08 18.79
1.303.45 TI6.88
2. Finance costs
TICULARS For the vear ended  For the year ended
PAR 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Interest on debentare 0,59 163
Interest on secured loan-cash credit - ez
Ingerest on secured loan from related partes 28,29 05T
Inkerest on hexse lahility 1252 26,74
Imterest on security deposits received 9.01 A0
Oahser finanee cost .06 0.70
490,47 3886
17, Depreciation and amortisation expense
: For the year ended  For the year ended
FARTICULARS
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Depreciation of angible asseis 15.66 B
Amartisaton of miangible sssets 28760 239.24
Amartisation of right of use assets 14.04 436
127.30 151.70

Y




I8, Chiher expenses

For the year ended  For the year ended
FARTRALARY 31st March 2025 J1st March 2024
Professional & Retainership Fees 2.126.02 92137
Advenisements & marketing expenss 13.21 1534
Power and Fuel 10,78 L
Travel and conveyance B7.64 1.7
Insurance expense .40 195
[iffice maintensnce 5.4 297
Software mainicnance G588 2054
Printing and stationery 1.04 352
Communication Expenses 156 9.62
Foreign exchange (gain) ( loss (neth 12.53 6l 6%
Postage and coarier 0.18 LR L
Bank charges 6.12 1.96
Rent 10.ET 961
Raies and taxes 15.63 47.12
Contingency provision 9.59
Repairs and maintenance 0.7 045
Provision for doubtful debis . 167 64
Loss on Sabe of Investment 9,91 RO3.TT
Corporale Social Responsibility (Refer Note Mo, 30) 48,71 (.50
Dopations §0.00 .
Miscellansmus expenses 1.53 2578

1.516.11 1.2196.62

19. Earning per share
PARTICULARS For the year ended  For the year ended

315t March 2025 31st March 2024
Profit | (Loss) for the year
Basic 7.51 4.752.24
Dilgred 7.51 4,753 46
Weighted average number of aguny shanes
Basic 19,86 I7.70
Drikuted 159,86 1497
Eaming per share (in B )
Basic 038 o8 48
Dhbused .38 238,03




Computation of Profit / (Loss) svsilable to the equity share holders, adjusted for effects of dilutive patential equity shares

I For the year ended  For the vear ended
EARANTLARS 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Profit / {Laoss) for the year 71.51 4,752.24
Add: Interest on compubsory comvertible deberntures presented in finance oot - 1.23
Profit ' {Loss) available to the equity share holders, adjusted for effects of dilutive potential equity shares T.581 4,753,446

Computstion H’—lﬂllﬁ.l average number of equiry shares used in ﬂmﬂl‘._l'lk uﬂll:lpu' share

. Far the vear ended  For the vear ended
PARTICCEAND 30st March 2025 31st Mareh 2024
Opening Balance 17.74 17.54
Weighted average number of equity shares ssued duning the vear Z.41 16
Werghted avernge number of equity shares used in calculating basic caming per sharg 19,86 17.70

Computation of weighted average number of equity shares used in caleulating diluted earning per share

Far the year ended For the vear ended
PARYIALARS 31st March 2025 315t March 2024
Weighted average number of equity shares used in cakculating basic caming per share 19.86 17,70
Add:
Effect of dilutive potential equity shares in respect 1o Compulsonly Convertible Diebentures 0.07
Effect of emplayee stock opuon - 2.0
19 86 19.97
3. Corporate Social Respansibility
Details of expenditure sn corporate sacial responsibility (CSR) Fur the vear ended | For the vear ended
31st March 2025 315t March 2024
() |Amount requined 1o be spem by the company during the year Amouni required 1o be spent by the Company 4871 Hh.56
during the year
(b} | Amouni of expenditure incurred 45,00 580
ich |Shortfall / {Excess) at the end of the vear (a-b) 371 0,76
id) | Total of previows years shorfall : E
(¢} {Rexon for shorfall - -
() {Nature of CSR activitics |Promotag education  [Promating cducation

Company carmes provision 1o extent of shortfall of corporate social responsibility expenses unspent during yesr.




VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

MNotes to Standalone Financial Statements

All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified

Mote 31: Dietails of payments to auditors

Particular

As at
3lst March 2025

As at
315t March 2024

Payment to auditor
As anditor:

Statutory audit fee 30,00 20,00
Out of pocket expenses - 2.00
Total pavments to auditor 30,00 11.00

Note 32 :

The disclosure pursuant to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, [MSMED Act] as at March
31, 2025 , March 31 2024 and March 31, 2023 is as under:

Particulars

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

The principal amouni and the interest due thereon
remaining unpaid 1o any supplier as at the end of
each accounling vear

3.78

.28

9,95

The amount of interest paid by the Company along
with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier bevond the appointed day durning the year

The amount of interest due and payvable for the
period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified
under this Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining
unpaid al the end of the year

245

0.08

The amount of further mierest remaining due and
payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise.

245

0.01




VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to Standalone Financial Siatcmenis

All amounts are in Lakhs, pnbess ofherwise specified

Mote 33 Falr value meagarements

Financial insirumenis by category
Farticular As ut March 31, 2815 As mt March 31, 2024 As ot April 01, 2023
Fair Value Carrying Valuc Fair Yalue Carrying | Fuir Valoe Carrying
: [ Amertised : Amnrtised Value FV | Amortised Value
FVPL FViIMl Cost FVIPL W] Cast FVIPL cl Cost

Finnncial nsseis = *
Ivestments 19,76 19.76 2B 6k 28 hilb 12.15 1215
[Lnans Recervahle 476,52 i 47652 A AR TS f 0K, 75 5ib4_30 S04 50
Trade receivables 1,629 54 1,629 54 1,32224 1.322.24 119129 1,191 2%
Cash and cash eguivalenis | 05665 I, 5665 47734 477,34 HEE R 100,14
Oiher Balances with Banks 20937 29417 - - - -
nher Nimancinl asscis Q54632 954 62 1,506 04 | 504 54 Tih 15 Thb. 15
Total financial assets . 1976 10,416.70 10,436.46 . 60| 9327 937167 - [ 1215]  2%6213| 257428
Financial liabilities ’ .
Horrowings 4.861.95 ER L 22.53 21.53 135.61 13561
Trade payahles - 224,24 22434 - 235.01 23501 154,30 15030
Oaher financial linbilities = 1,363.47 | 36347 - 307 31 30731 136,12 236,12
_I.ﬂ'!ﬂiﬁlhﬂllliﬁ 45,72 49.72 236,40 236,44 . 2t 300,26
| Total Minsncial Habibivhes = 6, 599,18 i, 590 1R - - 125 Bib).25 - - W), 29 O3y, 29
Measuremeni of Fair Values

a The above exchsdes myestment in subsidinrics and sssociates which is recogised at cost,
b The basis of measurement in respect 1o each class of financial asset, financial liability is disclosed in the material scoounting policies.
€. The Company has nad disclosed the Fair valoe of financial mstruments that are carmied of amortised cost becasse their camying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value




VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes 1o Standalone Financisl Statements
All prmounis are in Lakhs, unbess otherwise specified

Financlal risk management

Risk mansgement framenork

w#ummumum&-@mmhnmmwmcm 1umwmkhm-ndmh-ﬂdmmrnmmm
1oy bimits, Risk manogement polscies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in markel conditions and the Company’s activities. The Compary, through b
training and management standards and procedures, aims 10 maintam & diseiplined snd conmmuctive contra| environment in which all eeaployees undersiand their roles and
obligations.

The Company kas exposure 10 Creda, Liquadity and Market rsks arsing from financial instruments:

Market Risk

Mlarket rizk i the risk that changes in market prices - such a8 mberest fates, equity and prefierence share prices — will affect the company’s income or the vabae of ity
holdings of financial instruments. The objeciive of market risk management is 1o manage and cantrol marke risk exposures within scceptable parameters. while optimising
the return. Material investmsents within the portfolio sre managed on an mdividual basis andd all buy and sell decisians are approved by the appropriste sutharizy,

The Company's fined rase borrow ings are carried ar amortised cort. They ere therefore not subject 1o interest rale risk as defined in Ind AS 107, sance nesther the camying
amaiant nor the futwre cash Nows wall fuceuace because of a changes o market inféres rades,

Forckgm Currency Risk

The fluctustion in foreign currency exchange rales may have patentisl impact on the statement of profit ar koss and otber consprebensive income and equity, where any

i spction references more than ane currency or where asséld / ahilities are denominsted in 8 currency other than the functional currency of the nespective entities.
Considering the countries and econamtic enviranment in which the company opérales, ils operations are subject w risks arising from fluctastions in exchange rates in those
couniries. The risks primarity relate to Mloctuations s U5 Dollars agains the functronal carrency of the compasy,

The Company cvalusics tho mmpact of forcegn exchange rate (uctustions by assessing its exposure 1o exchange mte risks,

Credit risk

Credit risk i the risk of fnancial loss 10 the Company if 3 customer or coanterpasty to & fnancusl matrument fils 1o meet is contraensal obligations. and arises principally
from the Company's recervables from cusiomers.
The carryang amount of following fimencisl asseis represenis ihe maximum credic exposure

8. Trade recenvables

b. Cash snd bank balomces




ViDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES FRIVATE LIMITED

Motes ta Standalone Financial Smiementy

Al smawsiy are in Lakhs, unless sthorwise specalicd

Liguidity risk

Liquadiey risk is the nsk that the company will encounter difficatry in meeteyg the obligatem sspocitsd widh its financial Labilites that are setiled by deliversg caab or anather financial
Bl 'I'hm'lmhhn—ﬁqH-iq'h.um.uhupmﬁk,“iﬂmmmmmﬂdhmﬁ-!hﬂﬁﬂﬂ.mmmm
i conrud honl incuring ensccopiable fovses of nsking damage o the company”s ropuladen.

Eapesure 1o Hguidicy risk

mﬁhﬂmhmmdmarm-lmiﬁnlhmﬁu.mmmnmm-ﬂwﬁhmlﬁmmmd

¢nclude the impact o neming agreemenis:

A st Sist March 1628

Comireciual Cash Flawy
cbryiannas Carrying ARuM ™5 12 Mowths i2Veas | 38Yeans | >3 Ve Total
Sson-rwrremi, nos-derivative Mnencisl Rahilities
Liakdiity componest af carverible debentures
Dither finencial bahilisi = 5 -y
Horrann mgn 4,041 %4 498185 4,961 55
Lezing |igbnlitiea * E
Cwrrend, now derivative Mosncial Rahilities
Hosrora wgs . 1 =
Cither financiad fabibde 1 384T i J&34T 1,363.47
Lease Tatlies 49.T1 #4272 + 45.71
Trade Pavabhes 144 1340 - 12414
5,593 (R rT] 496195 [ E]
Mok ad 81 March 2024 e
s =
R Carrylmg Amovst| — - Mantie 1-2 Years 25Vears | > 5 Yeans Taesl
SNon-gurreni. non-derivative financial lshilities
Lishility compesem of converlible debeniurgs .
Ortheer financiad liabiiey 1012 106,12 I 12
Rarrouings I15¥ - 1399 poX i |
Leass liahilites 8.7 Hnn . 71
Cwrresi, s derivative fnascial lishilities -
Bewrow ings + - - -
Lease jisbililicy [Lrv ] 13696 .12 - 186 68
Uther finencial lisbsies vl M L] HLig . - 09
Trade Payables 1401 pat 1] s - 35,01
[T 716 20556 125 B01.25
As @ i April 2023 _
. Contractual Cash Fiows (sndiscounted)
bt . 13 Months 3Years | 385Veans | >5Vean Total
Sos-curfent. non-derivalye Gnancial labibites
Lishiliry coemg af bl debentures .
Ot fineecisd lubisties L] LLE } - ¥
Beourowings 1549 EL ] . ELr ]
Lirass lishilities 11640 pLET A7 11840
Carresl, som derivative fAnancial Habilities :
et asgs [ L1 - L
Lease lighilitiey 16256 162 & : 161 86
hther financial habilmies 1383 13831 : 13831
Trade Payahies 14830 13930 . . 13510
(1] 7T KT L5 - ¥8.19 |
A Cwpital managemend
The Company s policy & 10 mamas a srong capital bass s a3 0 maisain i invesnor, crsdaor and marker confldence and 1o susain feare developmen nf the bunes.
The Campanys sipueted set deb i equiny Fah were o Sallows
Partical Ana An &l As wl
A1 Mar 2055 3
Tel borrowings 4,960 95 1153 13581
Less: Conh & Cash Fqual anin Kol W77 119
Mdljusted net debi LI T =454 0| 3541
Total equary T,663.00 10, 359,63 1545
Addjusied net debi io adjusted fetal equity ratio 0.51:10 R 01:1




VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates o Siandalone Financial Siatemenis
All amoants are in Lakhs, anless otherwise specified

37 Tax expense
As ar As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2014
{Laoss)Prafit for the vear TL.5S 532845
Income 1ax expense calculated st 25.17%% (For the year ended 315t March, 2024 - 25,17%) 18.01 134117
Effect of expenses not deductible | utilisation of fesses for which no Deferred a0 was created 28.50 (764,94
Total 4851 §76.23
Adjustment recognised m the current year in relation o the current tax of prior years 17.33 -
Income tux expense recognised in the Standalone Statement of profit and loss 6404 576.23
38 locome earmed in foreign currency
A ut As ot
Particulars 31 March 2015 31 March 2024
Service fees 3,946.14 2,633,510
3,946.14 3,633.81
Expenditure incurred in foreign carrency
Asan As ot
Farticulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2014
Travel and convevance A%.28 47.14
Commission cxpenses 19920 162.79
16748 20993

The Company did not hedge is foreign cumrency exposure on account of foreign currency demominated receivables: (payables) as st 31 March 2025, The
Company's unhedged loregn curmency exposure on account of foreign currency denominated receivables/ (payables) as at 31 March 2025 are as follows:

As at 31 March 1015

Amount in
Particulars Amuount in INR Currency fareign
CUrrens
Caxh and cash equivalests
Cash in hamd a2 QAR 0.02
Cash in hand 1.41 MR .01
Cash in hand .63 Ush 0.01
Trade Pavable 149.92 AED 644
Trude Receivahle 147745 AED 62.95
Total 1,630.03
As at 31 March 2024
Amaount in
Pariiculars Amount in INR Currency fureign
CUFFENCY
Carh and cavh equivalents
Cash in hand .30 QAR 0,4
Cash in hand LLRE] AED 0.0
Cash in hand 0,14 ELUR {0,k
Cash i hand LRI USD 0,k
Trade Payable l46.68 AED .50
Trade Receivable I,151.21 LSD 13.79
Total |, 298.45




39 Segment reporting

The Company has only one identifiable segment under Ind AS 10E- "Operating Segments”. The chiel operational decision maker monitors the operating
resalts of the entiny's business for the purposes of making decisions shout resource allocation and performance assessment.

Information abprgt majer cusiomers

Revenue from operations includes revenuss of approximately Bs3,851.85 Lakh (Year ended 315t March, 2024- Rs.2,633.81 Lakh) which asoss from sales
to the Company's two customers, Mo other customer contributed 110 or more to the Company's revenue for both 2024-25 and 2023-24,

40 Related party disclosures
In complinnce with Ind AS 24 - “Helated Party Disclosures”, as notified under Rube 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standands) Rubes. 2015 and
(A Name of the related parties
(1) Subssdiary Companies
Bajay FinServ Health Limited - Holding conspany
Vidal Health Isurance TPA Private Linuted - 1007% subsidiary
VH Medeare Private Limited - 100%% subsichary
VH Imernanonal LLC - 100% subsidiary
Vidal Healih Hest Doctors Private Limited - 100% subsidiary {*ull 28th March 2024)
Vidsl Heahh Imernational Inc- (1 00% subsidiary of Vidal Healih Best Doctors Private Limated) [ *till 28th March 2024)
Vidal Health Imernational AE LLC {100% subsidiary of Vidal Health International Inc) {*uill 2&th March 2024}
Bajaj FinServ Direct Limited - Fellow subsidiary

in} Assoceate Company
Intent bealth Technologies Private Limated (21.30% shareholdmg tll 28th Manch 2024

(iii} Enterprises in which the Kev Management personne] bave contral
Victus Capital Services LLP

irv ) Key management personne] and their relatives
Chairman and Managing Dhrector Mr. Girish Rao
Directors Ms. Mandita Swamy (Till 26tk April 2024)
Mr. Devang Pravin Mody (From 26th April 2024)




Summary of iransactions with the above related parties are as fallows ;

Particulars [escription As at As at
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
M. Girish Rao Remuneraison® 1, 740,66 193,50
Reimbursement of expenses T.28 398
Ms, Nandita Swamy (Till 26th April 2024) Remuneration® - -
Reimbursement of expentes -
Bajaj FinServ Health Limted Loan received 5 RER.10 -
Interest Acorzed on Loan 468,29 -
Vidal Health Insurance TPA Private Limited Service fees 37.00 Q1119
Reimbursement of expenses incurred 15467 -
Sabe of brand B 5,350,000
Lisan Ciiven i, 00 ey -
Interest o Loan A58 45 5
Interest on security deposits received 9.01 830
Interest on Met Investment in sub |eases I ) 2540
Vidal Health Best Dactors Private Limited Service fees 580
Loan - 600
Inderesi Accrued - 0.0z
Addimional shares Purchosed = 4452 48
Professional Fees - .30
Receivables written off - HH.00
Vicmus Capital Services LLP Interest paid on CCD 059 370
Interest Income on Loan 2626 25800
Loan gramed . £.400.00
Livan returned 5,404,001 -
Recespl on Sake of Investment - 41.62
Vidal Health Internasional AE LLC Service fees 1L.67
Reimbursement of expendifure 5.49
VH International LLC Investmient tn Equity 12.31
Risimbursement of expenses 601 -
VH Medcare Privaie Limuted Loan granied 194,50 134.25
Interest income on |oan 69.33 51.57
Service foes . 217
Rt .08 .
Reimbursement of expeniss incarred | .52 10,43
Urher payables - B.25
Hapay FinServ Darect Limited hanpower supply charges 483 5

* Managerial remuneration paid 10 key management personnel does not inchude cost of retirement benefits such as gratuity and compensated absences
since provision for these are based on an actusrial valustion cammed out for the Company a5 a whole. Also, it dogsnt mclude mcentives not identified

separately.




41

{C) The Company has the following amounts due [rom/to related parties:

Particulars Description As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2014
M. Girish Rao (Payables} Receivable towards reimbursement of expenses - 170
Ma, Mandita Swamy {Pavables) Recervable iowards reimbursement of expenses - -
Bajaj FinSery Health Limited Loan received 4.961.9% -
Equity companent of debi Q84,52
Interesi Accroed on Loan 36583 -
Vicdal Health Insurance TPA Private Limited Sub-lease deposits payable 11500 106,00
Trade receivables IBR69 126,94
Loan given 5,643 .27 -
Capital contribution on concessaonal loan 1,120.08 -
Interest Accroed on Loan 41260 =
et Invesiment in leases 4367 114.58
Vidal Health Best Doctors: Private Limited Loan granted - ¥
Interast receivable on loan . -
Reimbursable expenses = -
Victus Capital Services LLP 0.1% compulsorily convertible debentures - 3,700 .04
Inserest receivable on loan - 15800
Sale of Investment - 4162
Loan granted - 5,400,000
Vidal Health Imernational Services AE LLC Trade receivables - 146,68
HRevmbursable expenses . 49,29
VH Infernational LLC (Hher Receivables 9601 -
VI Medeare Private Limited Loan granted §33.25 638.75
Inierest receivable on loan 179.48 117.08
Trade Recervable 16243 9.2
Bajaj FinServ Direct Limited Trade Payuble e -

The Company have not received any fund from any personis) or entitylics), including foreign entities {funding party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

u. directly or msdirectly lend or invest m other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalfl of the funding pamty (ultimase
beneficiares) except for loan taken in the carrent vear from holdmg company for INR 58 8%Cr which 15 used to lend money 1o wholly owned subsidiary or

b. provide any guaranice, secunity or the like on behalf of the ultimate benelicuaries
Transfer pricing

The Company has established & comprehensave system of mamenance of informavon and documents as required by the transfer pricing begislation under
sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961, Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation 10 be conlemparaneoss m nature,
the Company is in the process of updaring the documentstion for the inemations! ransactions entered imto with the associnted enterprises during the
financial period. The Company is required 10 update snd put i place the information |siest by the due daie of filing its income iax rewrmn. The
management is of the opinion thal its international transactions are at arm's length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have amy impact on the
financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision for tax.

42 Exemption frem compliance with Section 185 of Compankes act 2013

The Compasy has been legally advised that Compulsory Convertible Diebemiures sre m the nature of Equity and hence not considered as borrowing for appheabibiy of
Section 185, Hence, Scotion 183 is not applicable,

43 Lows on disposal of subsidlary

Tho company had made investments in equity ehares amounting 1o Bs. 2,485 lakhs (2485 Cr shares of Ra. 10 cach) aad had given loans amounting o Bs. 4,432 45 lakha
i its wholly owned subsidiary Vidal Health Best Dociors Private Limited (VHBD) which m tum has Vidal Healih International Inc., in Brinsh Virgsn Islands, Vidal
Health Intemational Ine., AE as step-down subsidisries. These loans were cooveried to equiry shares by VHBD and ssucd mecesssry shares bo the company.
Consequently, 693.74 akh shares are sold io Victus Capital service LLP at a fair value of shares on daie on sale {i.e, 0.06'share] resuliing in Joss of R 6,895,586 |akhs.
The company has charged Ra 6,092 00 lakks i FY 2020-2 ] ond balences loss i3 charged during ihe previous year a3 exceptional (bems amounting to Ks. 803,77 Lakhs.
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VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified

43, Movement in deferred tax assets' (Hubilities) (net)

Amt in INR
Deferred tax Assen Recognized in Recognized in other Rwnpiasd ia Deferred tax Asset /
Particulars {Liability) as ot | statement of profit and comprehensive - {Liability) as at
31.03.2024 loss income equity 311.03.2025
Property plani and equipment 13.06 {16.30) (3.45)
Employee benefits expense 53.65 9931 15195
Provision for doubtful debts 34.00 - 54,00
Financial assels {3.78) (1.36) (5.34)
Other items - 241 241
Total 115.92 3,66 199.57
Movement in deferred 1ax balances for the year ended 31 March 2024

Ami in INR

Deferred tax Asset / Recognized in Recognired in other —_— I Deeferred mx Asset |

Particulars {Liability) as 91 | statement of profit and |  comprehensive ; e (Liability) as ar
31.03.2023 loss income S 31.03.204

Property plant and equipment 19.8% (6.82) 13.06
Employee benefits expense 2507 2758 52.65
Provision for doubtful debts 11.81 42,19 54,00
Financial assets (2471 {131} (3.78}
Total 54.20 | 61,64 11592

Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and lisbilities and
recoverability of deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets 18 based on estimates of taxable tncome and the
pericd over which deferred income tax assets will be recoverad.




VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Sates io Standalone Finamcial Staloments
All smownis are i Lakhs, unliss otherwise specified

44 Tod AS 18] « Firsi inse achipsian
Statemsid of reconcilkation betw een the HGAAP and lnd A% Explanasien of transiton ie Ind AS

These finascial sstements, for the yoar ended Mt March 2025, are the st Gnencial staseenents he company has prepared in scondance with Ind-A%, For
perinds up 1o and including the vear ended 31s March 2024, the company prepared il fnuscial sisloments in sccordance with sccosning standards notified
under soction 133 of the Companses Act 3013, read iogether with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accoanis) Rules, 2014 {Indian GAAPE

Accordingly, the company has peepased financisl ibements which comply with Ind-AS applicable for periods ending on or sfier 1lat March 200%, wgeiber
with the comparative porod data as at and for tho vear coded 319 Marh J024, s desorbed in e uemmary of significant sccounting pohicies. |n peeparing
these financial staicosents, e company’s openisg balance shert was propared as af 1 Apnl 2023, the compasy's daie of tranaiticn o Ind-AS. This note
explains the pringipal adjusiments made by the company in mstiting it [adian GAAP finsncisl metements, including the balance sheet s at Ist Apnl 2027 and
the [inancial

sntcments as at and for the vear ended 31ai March 2024

Orptinaal exemgplions svailed and mandatory coceptions

in pecparing thess standadone financial staternests, the Company has spploed the below d opivonal exemptions and mandatory cacephons.
A Optienal exemptinns avaird

&) Propeety plant and equipmeoal snd stengible sasen
As per Ind AS 101 an ontity may ¢loct i

i murasure am ikem of property, plan and equepment ar the daie of transizsion atb its @iz valer and ase thal fair value a5 gy deemed codl @t that daie,

i) e TEGAAP sevalugibon of an flem of property, plant and squipmen at or before the date of ransithon as deemed cosi 9 the dsie ol the revaluation, provided
the revalustion was, 0 the date of the revalustson, brosdly comparabie o fhir value or cost or depreciated cost onder Ind AS adjied io reflect. for exemple,
changes in a gensral or specific price index

The clections ander i) and 1) sbowe ane also avaalable for mtenpible asscts that meets the recognition eriteria in Ind AS 38, Inoegible Assen, (incloding
relakle messuresnem of ongmnal cost); and critena. in [=d AS 38 for revalusiton {including the exssience of an active market).

iliy user carrying values of property, plant and equspment and stangibde nssets a8 oo the date of transition 1o Ind AS (which are messured in sccordance with
IGAAP and afier making sdjusments relming w decommissionang [Habilnies preseribed under Iad AS 10 ) if there kas bass no change i i functonal cusrency
o ihe daie of irensition

As permitted by Ind A% 10). the Company has elected to mexsure property, plaet and equipment and inlangible asaes e corying value as per JGAAP os
decmad

i Indestmient ba smbsbdiarkes and sysociates
The company has clocted fo cery ity investment i subsidianes o deemed coss which i ies KRAAP carrying amoent at the deie of ramitios 1o lnd AS.

] Share-hased paymonts
A Tiri-Time RACPLEr 18 encouraged, bul b0l fequared. Yo apply Ind A3 1D Share-based paymsent & squsty matrumends that vesied bedore Sate of trandshan & Ind

AS. However, ifa firsi-time adopter eleciy to apply Ind AS 102 10 such equity isstruments, i1 may do 0 only (f ibe emity has disclosed publicly the fair valee af
thae equity (amiruments, determanéd al the measigement date, as delfined m Ind AS 102, For all granis of equity instrunsests io wiich Ind AS 107 has mot been
applied {eg., equily msiromeni vesied bui poi setiled before date of ransizon w0 Ind A5, & firsi tinse adopier shall neverthaless disciose the information
required by Ind A5 102,

The Company has clected not 10 apply [nd AS [00 to equity inssnaments tha vested before doe of ransstios 1o Ind AS

.
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B. Mandatory cxceplions
ia) Estimaley

As per Ind AS 10}, an cotity's extimates = sccandasse with [ad A5 a2 the dale of traodbon w Ind A5 ar the end of the compamiive pernod presenied i the
emtiny's First Ind A% fimancial statements, 85 the case may be, should be consisient with ctmates made for the sine date o accordince With (he IGAAR unlkes
there i abgective evidence thar those estmaies mere m error. Hiowever, the estinsates should be adjusted 1o reflect any differeoces in sccousting palicies

A per bnd AS 11, where pplscatson of Ind A5 requires sn snnty o make cerin estimales that wene sl required ander [GAAP, those estimutes should be
made o refbect conditions the eximed af the daie of iransition (for preparing opening lad AS balence shoet) or at the end of the comparstive penad (for
proseming compargine information = per Ind AS)

The Company's estinuses ander Ind AS are consistent with e sbove regairement. Key estimases considensd i prepamtsm of the vandabone financial
sasemnienis that were nob reguared under the 1GAAP are listed below,

- Detevminaison of the descounted valws for financial mstruments camied at amortised cost

- kmpairment af fnascal seety bused on the expected credit hins model.

- Fair valuaton of finantial marunssats camed ot FVTPL snd'or FVOCT

i) Classification smd measudomenl af (inascial aseh

{8} Uinder Ind AS V0%, on inifial Fecagnitan, & fmsncas] ssaet is classified o amorized coux, fair value through OC] or fair value through profit and loss based
I Basiness Endel and Sclely Pay of Principal and Inserest {SPP1) ereron. A firm-tiene sdopier i required i make nach axsessments basad
an facts and cincurnstances thal exist st ihe date ol Fransiion

(b} a modified thme value of moncy clemend of 3 financzal auel (1 assessed 1o dejermine whether it meetd (he SPP1 criterion. If if b mmpeacticabls 1o make ush
assessment based on the faces and circumstasces thai existed af ibe dale of transstion, then @ frei-time sdogrer b requened {0 make the Ewersme af the SPPI
criberion witheun raking inso sccound the spécific reguiremeniy for the modified time value of money element.

{6 & propaymiend featare o 8 fnancial daset |s dospassd 10 dessrrmine whether the Financial asset in eligible for clessifiing e amartized cost or fir valee through
() Bt o impraciicable io assess whether the fair value of & propayment leature wis msignaficand based os ihe facts and circumstances that exssied o the dase
al trassitian, them a first-time adapier s requared b make e clawiflestion mscvment without tsking inia sccounst ibe excepison for cevtain prepayment featares
requered b0 make ihe ssessment of the SPPL crivericn,

1F it i impracticable 1o sgply the effective &t metiod in fadien Accouning Stendarnd (Isd AS) 109 Finencial Instraments resrospectiveby. ihen the fair valoe
af the linamcal asset or fimancal liability ai the daie of fransifion = the new gross camying amuunt of tha fmancial aseet or the new @norloed cost of that
Tonancuad habulity at the dets of trensition

Agcordingly, the Company baa delermined the classfeanon of finsncis] assets based oo figts snd circummances that exin oo the deiy of wasaicon.
Measarement of the financizl assets accounted at amartised cos? has been done retrospectively except where the same is impractible

1 Fair valustios of finsscial ssets

Fair valsation of financial susers primarily comprises of faer vilue of mvewimenss end socuniy depesit. Under ibe proviows GAAP. curres svestments wene
mcasared at Bwer of cost ar fair vabe and security depesity were recorded at cost. Under [sd AS, invesirsesis are messured an fair value and tare mark-to-mmarket
gaiss |oenes are mccognized w proln o loss, Security deposit are indtially recognised & Fair value and remeasuned at amortised ol

2 Faar vadustion of finescial labelitics

Fair valuateon of fmancad lishilites adjustments represents fur valoe sdjusament of 00K 1% Non-Comvertble Debesures ("NOD™) and 001% Redosmable
Cumulnive Preference Shares i"RPS") in sécordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Inssnaments. Under KGAAP, the Company has clasified WED ax borowing and
RPE as equity at tmnsaciien price. However a5 per Ind AS, the NCT3 and RPS & inislaliy recopnised & falr value in sccordance with Ind AS 113, Fair Value
Measurement snd the difference beraeen fair valur and tamactson price & accounted under “other aguity”, NCD asd RPS i ssbssgoently mesiand @
smaetized cost asd recognered merea cosl on eifecisve smierew rase

1 Tax adpesinents
Tax adjustments inchades defermed tax impact cn sccount afl differences between the previous (GAAR and Ind AS.

4 Shant based payment

Under previous (GAAF, the Company has sceounted thare based payment expenses under inmizsic value method e sccordence with Guidsnes male an
Accousiing for Employes Share-baded Faymesi, Howeves wsdes Ind AS the Company bas accounied the Skare based paymeni cosi st fair valoe method in
wccoedance with Ind AS 102, Share-bhesed Payment




VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
“ited 16 Standabene Flmancial Sealements
All nmounty are in Lakbs, unless otherwine specified

Herancilistion of ststemeni of squity & previsusly reported usder IGAAF and Ind AS

b Anwtin
' As i !:-:I;:"-Iﬂ April
Tutal egesty {sharchalder's funds) ax per prrviows GAAR [TET 13736
[T TR 11718
RUILTE LS
Impact of fnancal asscts & Ffnancial lshilices cerried ot amortised
ML 11596} i3
nstrurnests that are entinchy in the nature of eguiry 3BT AT .67 80
| Deferred tax om croditichargs) sdmanments 2330 (28.0d)
F.h‘l: Adrastinents. . '
|ECL Prénvasian 10,75 .13
Taesl Ind AS imspact 1.340.21 2,781.09
Taiad equity ms per lnd AS 02154 98
As i Mai March 2024 As a1t R
PARTICULARS As por IGAAF Adjuitmenty A per IndAS | Asper IGAAP | Adjustments | As per [ndAS
ASSETS
Propemy, plam e squipment 750 . 5% 1340 - 15.40
Right of wse maseis 2 344 545 - LR 980
Criher intangible assets 487.37 - 45737 n - 35011
Intangibic asseis aider derekpent 16.57 16357 R 11,83
Financual sty " - v .
gy tmeses 2 ETE.60 13Ta0 3883 58 166598
Litns Hecenahle 36 73 - ] ELTE ] : 30450
Dither fmancal sssc 140,85 Iiz4 pLaE: ] 1408y 4N 497.08
Cither non-cumest assets . < = (212 . 6,64
Dieferred @ assety 139,13 (2% 20 11582 K138 (R0} 5429
Twtal mew-current sasils A 30888 19349 438144 484178 31T 5179.78
Currend musils
Feancal sxset
Lraeitemente 18.50 P ] [FE - 1215
Laans Recenshle 5,400, 00 - 540000 - - #
Trade receivasdes 1 501 41 [(ITRI7N 13114 119204 10,755 1, 191.2%
Cash and cash eyurmlens 477 M . 4TT.H 109 . 10419
(nher financial assets 1. 152.83 04z LIRS 169 06 aal 6907
(thary curmomd asasts 20,53 191915 1362 2423 LT A8} Sn.77
Twdal curtenl swsits 765,71 (37106} A% 60 18767 {17630} 1,651.47
Tedul assens 15,074 56 (ITTAT) 115 [ L] 18177 611,22
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equiry
Equity shase capitl ITT 48 : 177.55 17439 - 17535
e equity PR (17.08) 486,68 817,60 LT THE T
Instnemenits that are entircly i the natwe af equity . 27340 1,675.40 279.50 3,674 40 3,644 30
Total rquity 848131 34881 16,539.83 137188 3,640,59 49948
Liahilstie
Nun-current lakilities
Finincis] Labdities
B iigh ) TE o (IBTT AT 2.5 57lanm (3 6TE A} Jaaw
Lenss habilines ! 87 4072 : 2E6.40 13640
mner financial lisbililics 11754 {1038y 104,12 117.50 (L I ¥1.11
Provisions JA2 6 (66 04} 16,60 130 . 1369
Tatal non-curresi labilitics 420004 4 HE1T) 184,97 ELTINT] T
Curreni Liabilides
Finamcial haksities
Bormwings = 96,12 98,12
Tradk: payabien . . :
il oal outytanding deci of micro el small emcrprisct 528 " 6.28 T2 " T.12
(k) total mastanding duey of erodaar other than micro aed wnall en 47063 (AL R ZZE.TY Lh ] (1T el (LR L
Leaes habilites . 186,68 1E6.68 . 162.88 (158 1]
Other finaecial labdilies 1597 .68 1 A% 45) 0019 1003 A2 (RS 51 13831
(Oeher current Labilities .08 1,%04.85 L)ET.0a a3 20 LR Gad s
Uurrerm: tan abilses ] 16604 160 & . .
Proncaioms i 54 _L19 ~ 119,
Total currend lishilities 169,28 LILW 151008 (26,131 130454
Tatal tisbilities fEEET] 537658 3,484.87) L9174 |
Totad equity mnd lisbilities T 11599 (s 1L 081122

* The previous GAAP figunes have been reclasaaficd 10 confirm 1o Il AS

o thee purposs of this sole,




YVIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statemenis
All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified

Reconciliation of statement of Profit and Loss as previously reported under 1GAAP and Ind AS

For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2024

Met profit after tax as per IGAAFP 475278
Adjustments
Rental Expenditures treated as repayment of lease liabilities 189.60
Rental income treated as receipts for net investment in sub leases (18012}
Interest expenses on lease Labilimes {26.74)
Imerest income on net mvesiment in sub lcases 1540
Reversal of rent strightlining provision (0.42)
Diepreciation on Roll Assets {4.26)
Interest income on Security Deposits held as other financial assets 9.7
Interest Expenses on Security deposits held as other financial habilities (8.30]
Interest Expenses on liability component of Compulsory convenible debentures 2.07
Remecasurement of defined benefit assets Tiabilities 5.58
Fair valuation of invesimenis {16.44)
Tax adjustments 343
Praflt after tax for the vear as per IndAS 4,752.24
Add: OC1 1226
Total Comprehensive income under IndAS 4,764.50

For the vear ended 315t March 2024

PARTICULARS As per IGAAP Adjustmenis As per IndAS
Income
Revenue form operations 3,606.53 (TOR.43) 2.898.10
Oiher income 5,715.73 18.69 5,734.42
Total Income 9.312.26 (6ED,74) 8,632,521
Expenses
Employee benefit expense 1.089.7% (372.91) T16.88
Finance cost 5.89 32.97 38.86
Diepreciation and amortisation expenses 24734 4.36 251.70
Other expensecs 264877 (350,16} 229661
Tatal Expenses 1.989.7% (685.74) 330405
Profit before exceptional em and tax 533146 (3.99) 5318.47
Exceptional iems - - -
Profit before tax for the vear 533246 (3.99) 532847
Income iax expense
Current tax 632.02 5.85 637.87
Tax of Earlier Years 4.45 i4.45) -
Dieferred tax charge/{credit) {56.78) (4.83) i6l.63)
579.69 (3.45) 576.24
Profit after tax for the vear 4.751.76 (0.£3) 4,752,123
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassificd to statement of profit and loss
Giin / {Loss) on remeasurement of defined benefin assetsliabilities - (5.58) {5.58)
Fair value changes in equity instruments through other comprehensive income - 16.44 16.44
Income tax relating 1o iems that will not be reclassified 1w staement of prodit and | - | 40 1.40
Tatal other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - 12.26 12.26
Total comprehensive income for the vear 4,7581.Th 11.73 4. 764.49

B




VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Naotes to Standalone Financial Statements
All amounts are in Lakhs, unless alherwise specified

Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flow far the vear ended 11 March 2024

For the vear ended 31st March 2024

PARTICULARS As per IGAAP | Adjustments | As per IndAS

Mt cash (used in) operating activities 6,054.66 490,83 6,545 40
Met cash flow from investing activities (5,550,861} (302.93) {5,853 54)
et cash flow from fnancing activitics {116.940) { 197.940) {11480y
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3RS {10.00) 377158
Cash and cash equivalents ot the beginning of the vear 10419 - 100.19
Cash and cash equivalents si the end af the vear 48734 - 1000 477.34




VDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
St o Stesdalens Fivancisl Statrmests
AN amuts @i 05 L aks, enles sthrrwion spoci fed

St ra firet Hme adeption

I Sewwrity Depasit puidl snd reccived swder lud AS 189

- v frer sncuriry depnit pand were carmesd of nomenl coe urder BIAAP. O spplication of 1t A5 109, 6l sk Saancial sssets s now bong messersd o asomsasd con sung effecuve
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arreriralitg el of such rEveEL BT
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rervwincding oot o puck ememureET

1.2 Laasen and Sob-keme easey under lnd A5 116
= The company has opied far spplication of 1adAS 118wk effect from ihe dur of ransition 10 kndAS and sccordingly right of use swet snd kesse Latliny for squoakent amaun of s b 28
Lakks & @ trcogaissd in opernng halance st
- The Leaie Fgualianon Rescros balirod as nn i mamstun dauz of R 17 55 lakha bk Boen afjusted dgiains Bl of ust aeen.
- P traraitiog dses. the soonpany hay Sewred e nghd of uss smet st sod o Lattd dep sl asry Lnted wmpaairmeeet sy, Sich deprecaman for pear ended 313 Marcs
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camveg amsinl e neflect e bemer payments made Sch Tefes 0 (edse Ly for vour ended 3o March 2004 prmemied R 2674 lakdm,
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1.3 Remesaurcment ol defimed bemeln obliganios: reclassfied m stier comprohomaie isceas
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VIDAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Nares 12 Standulone Financial Statemeits
All smounty are in Lakhi, unbess atherwise specified

6. Trade Receivabde Agring Schedule © 3 Ay st 31 March 2015
Ouisianding for fellswing periods fram due daty of payment
Furtivslars Less than @ monthe ‘“::_“” l-lyemrs | 23yesrs | Merethas 3 years TOTAL
i |Usdispuicd
- Conasdened gl 136002 26474 T8 1,833.84
- Conssdened doubsfial 16800 V.
Bl |Chspeted =
- Considensd puud - =
- Conyidered duubafal 42,10 L ET
| i) [Provision for Duabiiul debis 1165 38 (46.16) 214
I TOTAL 1.341.82 264,74 PELTE N 16398 lﬂg |
As at 31 March 2024
- Outstanding for following periods from des dute of payment
i Faeuiars Less than & moaths 'M::"'“ l-lyears | -dyears | More (han 3 vesrs TOTAL
i i [Undisputed
= Conshlersd good j 02 48 11997 (NE] 1323.00
- Considerad doubaful 16764 45,16 31350
i) |Drinpemied .
I - Considerod doubaful e
fi) | Provesied for Doubuisl debo (167,645 .75} (4. 18] {114.45)
1 TOTAL 104285 3922 (AT} : = 133034 |
As at 01 April 2023
I Ouiasding lor followiag periods from dus dute of payment
i S Levs than & mantin ‘H::"' -2years | 2-3yesrs | Mare than 3 years TOTAL
| 1 |Undesputed
- Considered good £X7.48 18207 LR 18233 109204
J . Considered doubaful 2616 26,16
| i) [Dsped :
I - Conudered good - &
| - Considered doubaful -
| i) |Provesios fior Deubiful deb {0.75) {416 {#8.591)
| TOTAL Ale.71 15207 (3T TR 1.191.29




VilAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Nopies to Standabene Finascial Statements

Al amosists are bn |akhs, anles stherwise speeified
Schedube

As at 31 March 2125

fae perinds from due dute of puyment
FarStatary Loess tham | year -1 years 1.3 years Mors tham 3 More than 1 years Totsl
s 8.
- MISNE 1.26 - .28
Onbers 02,15 2082 pai iy
- Disputed dues - MSME 4 L
- Diispruted dues - Oihers . . K
pLER] - 242 - prllr]
As at 31 March 2024
mwu_glnmmsm
ol Lesa than | year 1-2 years I-3 vears "T:" Mare than § years Toisl
0)|Trade Payables - BISME (¥ 145 - r%L]
iij [Trade Payubles - Others 22140 - Tk 1
i) |Trade Payables - Dispused dues - MSME s :
iv} |Teade Payables - Dipused dugs - Cithers . = = E
Tatal 12492 245 784 = 23501
As mt @il T2d
Cutstanding for fotlowing pariods frem dme dute sf payment
r— Less thun | vear 1-2 years Yyeary | PRAreihiND | o ore than 3 yeurs Total
il |Trade Payables - MSAE 712 ; Tl
wj |Trade Payables - Ohers 500 44 1d1.74 15018
1) |Trade Payables « Disputed dues - MSME - .
ivy | Trade Payabies - Dusputed dues - Others . - .
Taeal 8754 - 191,74 = - [ECET]




* poqurted where e vidianes eacoeds 29%

Ay An i
Sr. Na. Ratis i limes/ Wit rador Dienomimaior st March Mlwi March | % Varia Rrasnm for varianee®
oz o
Currest Linhalities exchading Lisan gvven 1o Vichia im
] arrend ragio i Tienes Curresl Gasesy carres) imazuribics of Mmg-1enm 1.55% ] IR w,wmhﬂw
I '3 i the current year
e o | oL urrent Bormwings . 4."‘{!\! loam has besen taken from
bl Diehi-oqusty ratin it 6 i i Toasl Eguiry [{NEEY o | deapnd BIFHL in the curront yeur
" |Frofil belore Tax + Inberest
PMEt) + Provisani fos Ilerest {Net) + Lease Wi h"ﬂ::‘ S
o | bt mervice coverage ratio i fimes: it of myeatmen |Pryments + Praneipal 0144 553 -"ﬂ'ﬁi!imﬁl wer Tl in
* Dieprecistion and [Repayment of lung-tesm Debi]
Aftmatinatim PIEVIOUS Year,
Waorkimg Capital fe., (Average 1hue in snecnease @ pevenue m
dl Mol Capital Turmover in timnes Met Salex Curremt Assets - Avernge 2iss L] 41 1.75%|current vear and chamges in
Curreasl Liabmbics) winkmngs capital
Heand @&l Vidal has been suld
10 subsidsary m provivas year
gl [Return om exquity rasis i N | Prfith Loss | afier tay Averspe Total Equity f oo ™| 100 paTe " PAT was is
| e
gl Trade receivables tammiver ragio |[in days |Revenue Enam eperations Averspe Trade Roceivahles 2. Tal 2.0 10 26|
Tutal cxpensrs other than
b | Trude payshles omover miio — [in deys Avverspe Trade Payahles Payrall Com, Finance Cost snd L 00 6.37%]
Depreciation per day
| Beand af Vidal has been spld
. . ot [ suhsidaary i previous year,
1] (Mel profil eatin in % |ProfivLass afler tax HRevenue fram aperation [ 16496 - R0 |2 L BAT ok thEda
Anernpe Equaty < Aversge Db
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&7 kher siatuiery infermation

|
L
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The Conspamy do not lave any benams property, where any procecding has been iniitacsed or pending agaimat the Company for holding any Benami preperey

Thee Canpany da ool have any transactans with conipanies siruck off

The Cormpany has sl been declaned wilfisl defaulier by sy bank or flnsncisl msnnsion o e beder

Thse Conspay have ol sdvanced of loaned of mvessod Tunds o any oihet perods) of extity i), inclading forrign entties (miermedumes) with e anderstanding that e miemmedisry shall:

o dwecily ar indirectly lend or urvest m other persons or entiises identfied i ey voaemer whssesver by oo om beball ol the company (ultinate beneficiane ) or

I prenide any pasranses. socwrnily o the ik 1o or an belall of e ultimate beneficianes

Thee Comspamy have ned received sny fund frean any pessonis ) of emiidylies), meluding foreign culsties | fundimg pary) with e understandmgg (whether recorded th wnzing or olberwine) that the Comguny shall:

& ilmeeily ar indirectly lend or invest m other persons o entitses identified m any masmer whatsever by or om bebadF ol the funding pamy (ultimate beneficiaries) o

b pravide any gusransee, security of the like on behalf of ihe ultimaie beneficianes

The & nnapamy have nid any sech iransaction which in moi recorded 1 ihe books of sccounts Ehai has been surrendered or dischosed as meame Suring ihe vear in the (. swsessimeds snder the Income Tas Act, 1901 isuch as, sesrch ar
sarvey or any oiher relevasd provisions of the ncome Tax Acl, 111,

The Conapany have nod traded or invesied im orypin cosrency or virsl cumrency durng the (imaseasl year,

Thee Covgpamy havet niod roceived sny Fund From any persoois) or emiityiies], mcluding foreign entriies | fusding party) with the undersianding {wiether recorded in wiiting or otbersise) that the Company shall:

n. ddwecily or indmeetly lend o imvesi in other persoes o entiises entified o ey masmer whatssever by or on beball of the funding party (ultimase beneficiaries) except for boam taken n e current yvear from balding company for
KR 588907 whiich i used i lend money b0 whally awned subsidiary or

I previdee any gusranes, seounity oo the ke on behalf of ibe ultimate beneficianes

Al per o fepornt of cven dale aitached
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